
Lori A. Weaver

Corambsioncr

Katja S. Fox
Dlreetor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-8S2-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-27M332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 13. 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Arkansas Foundation for
Medical Care. Inc. (VC#333439-P001), Little Rock. Arkansas, for the continued provision of
program evaluation and data collection, analysis, and reporting for the Continuum of Care
System, by increasing the price limitation by $903,266 from $1,609,900 to $2,513,166 and by
extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2026, effective July 1, 2024, upon
Govemorand Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2020, Item
#14 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on February 16, 2022, Item
#36.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502 $298,201 $0 $298,201

2022 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502 $303,074 $0 $303,074

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502 $154,517 $0 $154,517
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2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92058502 $451,633 $0 $451,633

2025 074-500589
Community

Grants
92058502 $0 $451,633 W51,633

2026 074-500589
Community

Grants
92058502 $0 $451,633 $451,633

Subtotat $1,207,425 $903,266 $2,110,691

05-95-92.920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL
SERVICES (68% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501 $99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

2023 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

Subtotal $402,475 $0 $402,475

Total $1,609,900 $903,266 $2,513,166

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. The Department is
Implementing the funding actions taken by the Govemor's Commission on Alcohol and Other
Drugs. On December 15, 2023 the Commission recommended and approved the funding
allocation for this Agreement. The Department carries out the administrative functions of the
Commission in accordance with RSA 12-J. The request will allow the Contractor to continue
providing services that support the Department in collecting, analyzing, and interpreting service
provision-related data across the Continuum of Care System in NH. The Contractor will continue
to build upon the fpundational work with the Department and its stakeholders to address and
integrate process improvements across the system.

, The Contractor will continue expanding the data dashboard work with-the Recovery
Community Organizations in New Hampshire to further provide data collection tied to improved
client outcomes, enhance Independent Peer Review processes, required by the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration to improve case management reporting outcomes for
treatment services, integrate and build on prevention sen/ices data collection processes to
improve standardization of direct and indirect prevention program goals throughout New
Hampshire. By overlaying various de-identified, aggregate data sets, such as demographic
information, health care resources, environmental factors, and socioeconomic indicators, the

r
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Department can continue to identify patterns and correlations ttiat contribute to health disparities
and allow for evidence-based decision^making and the development of targeted interventions to
address the root causes of these disparities.

The Department will continue monitoring services through regularly scheduled meetings
and the submission and review of monthly reports to ensure:

•  Evaluations assess program performance at all stages of development and are
implemented as designed or operating as intended.

•  Services inform and aid in the irhprovemerit of substance misuse policies,
programs, and practices.

Should the Governor arrd Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to identify and mitigate chailenges that address fiscal responsibility and improve
transparency and accountability across the Continuum of Care System.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN # TI083041,
TI083464. TI084659 and TI085821.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

^ Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communi/i«5 and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGD)
Services System contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreertient (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020 (Item #14), as amended on February 16, 2022 (Item #36), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,513,166

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1 Scope of Services, Section 1.3.1.2. to read:

.  1.3.1.2. Process evaluations to ensure program fidelity by assessing whether a program or
process is implemented as designed or operating as intended, including meeting
contractual and/or regulatory service requirements.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.3.3. to read:

1.3.3. The Contractor shall complete a process for an Independent Peer Review (IPR) as
required through the Substance Use Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery Block Grant
(SUPTR-BG).

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.3.5.4. through Section 1.3.5.6. to read:

1.3.5.4. Working with the Department, and stakeholders identified by the Department, to improve
programming by identifying potential areas of improvement in data collection and
management.

1.3.5.5. Working with the Department to expand data collection and analysis capabilities as
needed.

1.3.5.6. Working with the Department to identify and implement data quality improvement
activities.

7. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Section 1.4.3.6.2. to read:

1.4.3.6.2. SAS®, and other platforms identified and approved by the Department, for all data

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-20

v7.12.23

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 1 of 7 Datel^fl^f^il
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analyses.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.4.3.7. to read:

1.4.3.7. Facilitating the collection and reporting of data including, but not limited to:

1.4.3.7.1. Utilizing available prevalence and impact data.

1.4.3.7.2. Creating a data profile with regards to a subset of the larger population who
are at greater risk of developing a substance use disorder (SUD) or, by
proximity, are at a greater risk of the consequences of individuals with a
SUD.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.4.3.10. to read:

1.4.3.10. Providing technical assistance in areas related to data collection, analysis, and
reporting, as needed.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.4.3.11. to read:

1.4.3.11. Conducting comparative and/or correlational analysis of data in order to compare the
similarities or differences between two (2) or more variables.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by adding Section 1.4.7. to read:

1M.7. The Contractor shall ensure any protected health information (PHI), or SUD data Included
in data collection, analysis, interpretation, reporting and support is handled and disclosed
in accordance with state rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of 42
CFRPart2.

12. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.5.1.2. to read:

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering, distributing approximately 45,000 surveys to. more than 80
participating public high schools, statewide, formatted in accordance with the
requirements of the CDC and the Department.

13. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.5.1.4. to read:

1.5.1.4. Developing clean datasets to include a universal file and CDC sample file of coded
results, approved by the Department.

14. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.6. Subheader title only to read:

1.6. Initial Planning of New Evaluation Projects:

15. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 3.2. to read:

3.2. The Contractor shall conduct and complete an IPR of not fewer than five (5%) percent of
the entities contracted with the State to provide SUD treatment services, per state fiscal
year, which is from July 1-June 30, as required through the SUPTR-BG. This includes, but
is not limited to:

3.2.1 Submitting a summary report to the Department including, but not limited to results
and findings related to the IPR within 30 calendar days following completion of the
review.

3.2.2 Submitting all final documents related to the IPR to the Department prior to June
30th of each state fiscal year.

3.2.3 The Contractor shall provide a written monthly progress report to the Department
related to accomplishments of the contract goals and performance measures, for
each scope of work, which includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.3.1 A summary of the key work performed for each scope of work^o? "i the
monthly period. js

• Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
4/25/202T

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 2 of 7 Date
v7.12,23

I
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3.2.3.2 Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigations
strategies for each.

3.2.3.3 Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

16. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 5., Additional Terms, by adding Section 5.4. through
Section 5.6., as follows:

6.4. Confidential Data

5.4.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as set by
the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

5.4.2. The Contractor must ensure any Individuals involved in delivering services through this
Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view, store, and discuss
Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

5.4.3. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data.

5.4.4. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request.

5.5. Privacy Impact Assessment

5.5.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in conducting a
Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system(s)/application(s)/web
portal{s)/website(s) or Department system(s)/application(s)/web portal(sVwebsite(s)
hosted by the Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used,
accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the
Department access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

5.5.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

5.5.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

5.5.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

5.5.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

5.5.1.5. Privacy practices.

5.5.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either significant
process changes or new technologies impacting the collection, processing or storage
of Pll.

5.6. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

5.6.1. General Requirements

5.6.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
performed by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known
as "Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless
othen/vise specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with
the Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the DTP template to the

-OS

JS
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-St1 .3 Contractor Initials.

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 3 of 7
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Contractor.

5.6.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of

.  any such Service from the hardware, software, network . and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

, 5.6.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
, was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store Departrhent Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document.,once transition of Department
Data is complete.

5.6.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and Its End
Users shall be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient in a
timely manner. Any such Transition Services shall tie deemed to be Services
for purposes of this Agreement..

5.6.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the Agreement, the
Contractor agrees that the Information Security Requirements, and if
applicable, the Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

5.6.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of
the Department's DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

5.6.2. Completion of Transition Services

5.6.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and the
Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after the product,
resulting from the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient
in accordance with the mutually agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said
15 business day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product.

5.6.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor will have 30
days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

5.6.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

5.6.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the Transition
Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in writirig, stating the
reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product
or at any time during the data Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the
actions to be taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is
not reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate actions, in

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contrac^i^^ln^L^.^
RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 4 of 7 Date
v7.12.23
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accordance with the Agreement.

17. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1 to read;

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 10.57% Substance Use Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Block Grant (SUPTR-
BG), by the Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment
(CSAT), ALN, 93.959, as awarded on:

1.1.1. 10/1/2019, FAIN TI083041:

1.1.2. 2/1/2021, FAIN T1083464:

1.1.3. 2/10/2022, FAIN; TI084659: and

1.1.4. 2/15/2023, FAINTI085821.

1.2. 83.99% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

1.3. 5.44% General .Funds.

18. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Termis, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY 2021 through Exhibit C-6 Budget SFY 2026, Amendment
#2.

19. Add Exhibit C-5 Budget SFY 2025, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.-

20. Add Exhibit C-6 Budget SFY 2026, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
4/25/2024

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 5 of 7 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

4/26/2024

Date

DocuSlgned by;

E00005804C63442..

.Katja S. FOX
Name:

Title: Director

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

4/25/2024

Date

C—OocvSlgned by;
14Se63F24S00410..

Name:

Title: President & Chief Executive officer

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 6 of 7
eff. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Oo^SlQnad by:

5/6/2024 '
—DocusiQnad by:

-748734844041460..

Date Name:'^°''y"

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by theOovemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 7 of 7
eff. 7.12.23
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C-5 Budget SP^ 2025, Amendment #2 RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc.

Budget Request for: Program Evaluation and Data Services

. Budget Period SFY 2025 July 1. 2024 • June 30. 2025

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 28.7

0.287

Lirw Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $157,323

2. Fringe Benefits $82,808

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. SO-

5.(a) Supplies • Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab so

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy so

5.(d) Supplies • Medical so

5.(e) Supplies Office S1.270

6. Travel S14.952

7. Softvrare/Telephone S34.166

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications SO

8. (b) Other - Telephone ' SO

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) so

Other (Printing/Postage) S50.400

Other (please specify) SO

Other (please specify) .  . $0

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs S350.919

Total Indirect Costs $100,714

TOTAL $451,633

Project ID #

Contractor Irdtial:

4/25/2024

Date:



DocuSign Env«top« ID: O£602Et»^21-41D»v>J5D-7AE4DE0e9B0C

C-6 Budget SFY 2026, Amendment #2 RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Budget Request for: Program Evaluation and Data Service

Budget Period SFY 2028 July 1, 2025 • June 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 28.7

l.lne Worn '' Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $182,893

2. Fringe Benefits $90,514

3. Consultants SO

Ar SO

5.(a} Supplies • Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies- l^b SO

5,(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $576

6. Travel $40,911

7, Software/Telephone $33,026

8. (a) Other • Marketirtg/ Communications SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) SO

Other (Postage/Printing) $3,000

Other (please specify) SO

- Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subreciplent Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $350,919

Total Indirect Costs $100,714

TOTAL $451,633

Project ID #

Contractor Initial;

Date:
4/25/2024
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CERTIFICATE OF AiitH

1; AhnaMarie Sullivan. AFMC CVrpbrate^Secretarv/hereb^ certi^ that:

fii, Clerk/Secretarv7(^icer of AFMC (Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.]

i2.. ifte'fpj^wing is;a tfuelcppy;of a>pte takeh.at;a meeting of the Bparii oYbjrectptsysha
d'ulv called and held on'Mav 2.20l4. at which a quorum of the birertors/shareholders were^
jiresVhtTaT^.voting.

iVOTEDi'T^at Johh Sieiig^is juiv authb'nzYd oKbehalf of AFMCTArkahsas Foundation for
!Medicai Care.'lnc') to enter Into contrarts or agreements with the S{ate:of N®w
iahd ahybf Its agencieTordepahmehts a^d fC^ is alitho'rizi'd tb.e)^'cutV^^'ah~d all
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(tKe'purpose'of.thisVote;

(3., l,her/by'cert|fy5h,a^sai^ybt.e^has;not.been amended p/-repeaie
effect7arof.the''dateT6f;the;contract/cphtfact!amTndm"entt6'w^ this (^itificatFls.attachedn
JhlVauthofjty wasyaT^^ (30) days p^rior to and remains valid fprlhirW |30)'days from thei
date pf.thls;Cert'ificate:of;jfithority:'i^rJher;ceftifythat:lt.ikunderstooy'that:the,State;of,New'
Hampshire vwill re[y; on this.xertlfcate as7evidenca^thatTthe.pelTdh"listed. above curfentiyj
occupy the posltibnTndlcaTed and has full; authority to-^bind lthe corporatibn:"Tb thei ej^en'tj^  ..r , ■•>},— — r. -i •

that' "^there are' any limrt's;7bn! jthe ^authofity, of- ariy Jisted; ^ihdividuai: 'tb: !bind. jthe.-
cbfpbratidh In cbntracfsTwifhttHe State^of New 'Hampshire,- alhsucH' iimitatibns7aTe7e}^ressly^
stated herein..

n
.May 2;'2024l , „ \ i I C W h UU. I \//f ft.fy
iDate: lAnnaMarie Sullivah,JC6fpbrate Secretary'
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AFMC Mission Statement

Our mission is to promote and inspire innovation in health, wellness and technology
through partnerships in our communities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (a nonprofit

organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021,
and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to

the financial statements..

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained \r\ 'Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section of our report. We are required to be Independent of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements

relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Arkansas Foundation for
Medical Care, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one'year after the date that the financial

statements are issued.

Lahdrriafk'PLG. Certlfi^ Public Accountants
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and

therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing

Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Lnc.'s internal

control; Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Awards, as required by Title 2

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and Arkansas Department of Human Services

are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State

Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Other Reporting Required Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6,
2032, on our consideration of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 6, 2023
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Federal contracts

State contracts

COVIO contracts

Private carrier contracts

Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Marketable securities

Real estate

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Paycheck Protection Program loan

Total Current Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Designated for future severance pay

Undesignated

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023 2022 2021

S  8,412,229 5 11,161,937 S  7,213,063

140,990 281,508 236,172

6,028,909 4,829,136 .  3,791,562

166,379 231,158 3,794,640

1,371,446 1,291,450 1,214,880

13,342 3,820 3,582

1,037,598 1,049,968 898,401

17,170,893 18,848,977 17,152,300

7,235,549 5,367,256 5,787,750

14,444,569 13,541,401 15,645,331

1,099,900 1,060,000 1,060,000

15,544,469 14,601,401 16,705,331

$ 39,950,911 S 38,817,634 $ 39,645,381

S  521,372

2,501,752

3,023,124

2,063,269

34,864,518

$  952,889

2,265,071

3,217,960

1,911,112

33,688,562

$  1,350,441

2,605,816

3,630,230

7,586,487

1,869,446

30,189,448

36,927,787 35,599,674 32,058,894

$ 39,950,911 S 38,817,634 $ 39,645,381

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30,2023, 2022, and 2021

2023 2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Federal contracts

State contracts

COVID contracts

Private carrier contracts

S  951,729

32,841,210

2,569,328

4,424,572

$  717,451

23,918,534

15,764,025

5,258,605

$  710,318

19,404,813

28,085,876

4,722,633

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 40,786,839 45,658,615 52,923,640

OPERATING EXPENSES

Direct

Indirect

Non-reimbursable

32,248,575

8,332,491

492,438

36,102,586

7,978,790

296,850

43,225,459

6,698,821

243,083

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 41,073,504 44,378,226 50,167,363

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (286,665) 1,280,389 2,756,277

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

Interest and dividend income

(Loss) on disposal of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)

on investments

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

Real estate investment income, net

472,856

1,017,775

124,147

434,874

(196)

(1,907,609)

3,630,230

103,092

156,554

2,543,601

115,749

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,614,778 2,260,391 2,815,904

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 1,328,113 3,540,780 5,572,181

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 35,599,674 32,058,894 26,486,713

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 36,927,787 $ 35,599,674 S 32,058,894

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,2023, 2022, and 2021

2023 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

without donor restrictions to net cash

from (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses

on investments

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

Changes in:

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total adjustments

Net Cash From (Used For) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AaiVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of marketable securities

Proceeds from sale/maturity of

marketable securities

Net Cash From (Used For) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AaiVITIES

Principal payments on capital lease obligations

Net Cash (Used For) Financing Activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

$  1,328,113 5  3,540,780 5  5,572,181

461,496 460,048

196

631,296

(1,017,775) 1,907,609

(3,630,230)

(2,543,601)

(1,074,472)

(9,522)

12,370

(431,517)

236,681

2,404,002

(238)

(151,567)

(397,552)

(340,745)

(3,779,270)

802

(188,992)

358,971

826,449

(15,758)

(1,822,739) 251,523 (4,710,103)

(494,626) 3,792,303 862,078

(2,369,689)

(6,223,674)

(39,750)

(791,926)

(265,311)

(2,200,516)

6,338,281 988,247 1,412,115

(2,255,082) 156,571 (1,053,712)

(108,098)

(108,098)

(2,749,708) 3,948,874 (299,732)

11,161,937 7,213,063 7,512,795

$  8,412,229 S 11,161,937 $  7,213,063

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTEl: NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (the Organization) operates primarily in the State of

Arkansas to improve health and health care by providing education, outreach, data analysis,
information technology, medical case utilization and review, and marketing/communications services
for Medicaid beneficiaries and health care providers in all settings. During the year ended June 30,

2021, the Organization also expanded services to mobilize a contact tracing team under a sub
contract agreement with the Arkansas Department of Health and hosted COVID testing and vaccine

events, provided staff augmentation for hospitals and university health centers, and expanded call-
center services to provide vaccine support services. During the year ended June 30, 2023, all of the
COVID services listed above ended. However, the Organization is continuing COVID vaccine clinics and

inspection services and COVID education.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SI6INIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Organization's policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues

are recognized, net of any applicable sales tax, in the period in which they are earned. Expenses are
recognized in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Organization considers cash equivalents to be all
short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

are so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes
in interest rates. At June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Organization had cash equivalents of

approximately $1,616,000, $1,290,000 and $664,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. If accounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to

operations when that determination is made. Determination of uncollectibility is made by
management based on knowledge of individual accounts and consideration of such factors as current
economic conditions. Credit extended is generally uncollateralized. Past-due status is based on

contractual terms. Past-due accounts are not charged interest.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is accounted for at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the
date of donation. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to thirty-nine years. For the

years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, depreciation expense was $458,226, $452,278, and
$618,008, respectively.

All acquisitions of nonexpendable, tangible personal property having a useful life of more than one
year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds $5,000 are capitalized.

8



Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

At June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Organization had fully depreciated assets still in service with an

original cost of approximately $3,900,000, $4,500,000, and $4,360,000, respectively.

Amortization

The Organization follows the policy of amortizing computer software costs over various periods up to

three years. For the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, amortization expense was $3,270,

$7,770, and $13,288, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification Topic Property, Plant

and Equipment, Section Subsequent Measurement, management evaluates long-lived assets and

certain Identifiable intangibles held and used by the Organization for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

During the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, no amounts were written off as impaired.

Investments

The Organization has portfolio investments in marketable equity and debt securities. Management

determines the appropriate classification of the securities at the time they are acquired and evaluates the

appropriateness of such classifications at each statement of financial position date. The classification of

those securities and the related accounting policies are as follows:

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities consist of marketable equity and debt securities not classified as

trading or held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value, and unrealized

holding gains and losses are reported on the Statement of Activities. The fair value of the

investments in equity and debt securities is based upon public market rates. See Note 6 for

discussion of fair value measurements. Realized gains and losses, including losses from

declines in value of specific securities determined by management to other-than-temporary,

are included in income. Realized gains and losses are determined by specific identification for

each security sold. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Non-Exchange Revenue

The majority of the Organization's revenue is derived from non-exchange contracts and grants which are

conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying

expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures

in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying

expenditures are reported as deferred revenue in the Statements of Financial Position. The Organization

has various cost reimbursable grants that have not been recognized at June 30, 2023 and 2022 because

the qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.



Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

Exchange Revenue

The Organization provides security risk analysis to private carriers. These are short-term fee for service
contracts. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, and revenue Is recognized when the
services are provided to customers and additional services are no longer required. The Organization

determines the transaction price based on standard charges for the services provided. These program

service fee revenues are included as part of "Private carrier contracts" on the Statements of Activities.

Federal and State Contracts

Federal contracts on the Statements of Activities include only contracts that are directly awarded and

received from the federal government. State contracts on the Statements of Activities include contracts

that are direct awards from the state or are federal awards passed through the state.

Compensated Absences

The Organization accrues the obligation for employee rights to receive compensation for future
absences, such as vacation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. In these financial statements, the provision for self-insured employee health claims
involved extensive reliance on management's estimates (See Note 10). Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Income Tax and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization qualifies as an organization exempt from income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and a similar state statute, and is not subject to tax at the entity level for

federal and state income tax purposes. The Organization accounts for uncertain tax positions In

accordance with the provisions of FASB Codification Topic Income Taxes. FASB Codification Topic
Income Taxes clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and requires the Organization to
recognize in their financial statements the impact of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return, if that position is more likely than not to be sustained under audit, based on the technical
merits of the position. Management has assessed the tax positions of the Organization and
determined that no positions exist that require adjustment or disclosure under the provisions of FASB
Codification Topic Income Taxes.

The Organization files informational "Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax" (Form 990) in
the U.S. federal jurisdiction.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and support
services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support service are allocated
directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Allocable expenses that are common to
several functions are allocated based on units of time expended. Indirect expenses are allocated to

the programs based on allowable rateS;

Advertising

The Organization follows the policy of charging advertising to expense as incurred. For the years
ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, advertising expense was approximately $85,000, $94,000, and
$51,000, respectively.

Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic
842), which supersedes Topic 840, Leases. This ASU requires lessees to record a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability equal to the present value of future rental payments on the Organization's
Statements of Financial Position for all leases with a term greater than one year. The leases will be

classified as either finance or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of
expense recognition in the Statements of Activities. Effective July 1, 2022, the Organization adopted
ASU No. 2016-02 for the year ended June 30, 2023, using the optional new transition alternative
method without restating prior periods. The Organization also elected the relief package of practical
expedients of which there is no requirements to reassess existence of leases, their classification, and
initial direct costs as well as an exemption for short term leases with a term of less than one year. The
ASU did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

NOTE 3; FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH RISK OF ACCOUNTING LOSS

The Organization uses financial institutions in which it maintains cash balances, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits or are uncollateralized. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts, and management believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk related to
cash. At June 30, 2023, the Organization had an uninsured cash equivalents balance of approximately
$1,400,000.

At June 30, 2023, the Organization had investments in marketable securities valued at $14,444,569,
which are subject to market risk.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 4: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021 are as follows:

2023 2022 2021

Furniture and equipment

Software

Building

Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

$  3,407,029 $  3,846,760 $ 3,823,174

1,765,333 1,721,073 1,721,073

8,816,287 6,854,852 6,839,262

424,668 424,668 424,668

14,413,317 12,847,353 12,808,177

7,177,768 7,480,097 7,020,427

S  7,235,549 S  5,367,256 $ 5,787,750

NOTE 5: INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

As stated in Note 2, investments in marketable equity securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities are carried at fair value. The cost, fair value, and unrealized

appreciation of these investments for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, are
summarized as follows:

2023 2022 2021

Cost of investments

Equity securities

Debt securities

$ 9,880,927

502,447

$  9,887,629

502,895

■ $ 9,901,982

503,321

$ 10,383,374 $  10,390,524 $ 10,405,303

Fair value of investments

Equity securities

Debt securities

$ 13,961,114

483,455

$  13,041,756

499,645

$ 15,130,071

515,260

$ 14,444,569 $  13,541,401 s 15,645,331

Unrealized appreciation

on investments $ 4,061,195 $  3,150,877 s 5,240,028

12



Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Statements of

Activities for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

Interest and dividend income

Net unrealized gains (losses)

Net realized gains (losses)

2023 2022 2021

$ 472,856 $ 434,874 $ 156,554

910,318 (2,089,151) 2,118,019

107,457 181,542 425,582

$ 1,490,631 $ (1,472,735) $ 2,700,155

NOTE 6: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FAS8 Codification Topic Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures establishes a framework for measuring

fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs

(Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the investments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the

investment.

Investments recorded in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position based on the inputs to

valuation techniques are as follows:

Level 1 - These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for

Identical assets in an active market that the Organization has the ability to access. These

investments are comprised of equity securities.

Level 2 - These are investments where values are based on quoted prices in markets that are

not active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially
the full term of the investments. These investments are comprised of debt securities.

Level 3 - These are investments where values are based on prices or valuation techniques

that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value

measurement. These inputs reflect assumptions of management about assumptions market

participants would use in pricing the investments.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the

lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

Equity securities: Valued at closing price reported on the active market on which the security is
traded.

Debt securities: Valued at the present value of the corporate bond's coupon payments and the
repayment of the principal.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization

believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other organizations, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following table presents the Organization's hierarchy for the investments measured at fair value
on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

June 30. 2023

(Levell) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Equity securities $ 13,961,114 $ - $

Debt securties . - 483,455

June 30. 2022

(Levell) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Equity securities $ 13,041,756 $ - $
Debt securties - 499,645

June 30. 2021

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Equity securities S 15,130,071 $ - $
Debt securties - 515,260

NOTE 7: LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization maintains a $500,000 revolving line of credit with a bank. The interest rate was
7.00% at June 30, 2023, 3.25% at June 30, 2022, and 3.75% at June 30, 2021. The line of credit is
secured by the Organization's federal, state, and private carrier contracts, with interest due monthly.
The line of credit matures in December 2023. As of June 30, 2023, there were no outstanding
advances on the line of credit.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 8: PAYCHECK PROTECnON PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan pursuant to the Paycheck Protection
Program, a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security CARES Act, from a qualified lender (the PPP Lender),
for an aggregate principal amount of $3,630,230 (the "PPP Loan"). The PPP Loan is to be used to pay
up to 24 weeks of payroll costs including benefits, interest on mortgages, rent, and utilities. The
principal amount of the PPP Loan is subject to forgiveness to the extent the proceeds are used to pay
these covered expenses. These funds have been accounted for using the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 470 debt model.

In September 2021, the Organization received confirmation that the PPP Loan had been forgiven in
full along with any accrued interest.

NOTE 9: LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Capital Lease

Assets acquired under capital leases have been capitalized and are included in furniture and
equipment on the Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021 at a cost of
$729,746, with accumulated depreciation of $729,746 in 2023, 2022, and 2021.

There were no capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

Operating Leases

Lessee

The Organization leases office space and various pieces of office equipment under long-term
operating lease agreements. The total rental expense for operating leases for the years ended June
30, 2023, 2022, and 2021 was approximately $86,000, $108,000, and $73,000, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under the above operating
leases:

Years ending June 30, 2024 $ 2,478
2025 2,478

2026 1,652

Lessor

A portion of the Organization's building is being used for the Organization's operations and the
remainder is being leased out under operating lease agreements. Rent income was approximately
$195,000, $167,000, and $202,000 for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Maintenance expense related to this income was approximately $71,000, $64,000, and $86,000,
respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, which is netted against the rent
income in the Statements of Activities as "Real estate investment income, net".
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE HEALTH CLAIMS

In January 2011, the Organization established a self-insured health plan. Substantially all of the
Organization's employees and their dependents are eligible to participate In the Organization's
employee health insurance plan. The Organization is self-insured for health claims of participating

employees and dependents up to an annual aggregate amount of approximately $4,092,000 at June
30, 2023. Commercial stop-loss insurance coverage is purchased for claims in excess of the aggregate

annual amount.

A provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims including both claims reported and

claims incurred but not yet reported. The accrual is estimated based on consideration of prior claims

experience, recently settled claims, frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. It is
reasonably possible that the Organization's estimate will change by a material amount in the near
term. Total expense for claims for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, was $3,336,493,
$3,568,676, and $2,737,508, respectively.

NOTE 11: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Organization has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the Plan). All employees who meet the age
eligibility requirement, and who are not leased employees or nonresident aliens, are eligible to
participate in the Plan. The Organization's funding policy for the Plan is to make safe harbor
contributions based upon 3% of each participant's compensation. The Organization also has the

ability to make a discretionary profit sharing contribution to participants. Through December 31,
2017, the Organization elected to make a discretionary profit sharing contribution of 1% of each
participant's compensation. Effective January 1, 2018, the Organization elected to cease the
discretionary profit sharing contribution until elected otherwise. Employees are immediately vested in

the safe harbor contribution. Employees become fully vested in discretionary profit sharing

contributions after five years of service. For the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, the
Organization made plan contributions of approximately $634,000, $654,000, and $588,000,
respectively. The Board of Directors has established a severance pay program. See Note 13 for further

details.

NOTE 12: CONCENTRATIONS, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A material part of the Organization's operations is derived from federal and state contracts. State

contracts are renegotiated annually. For the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, these
contracts represented 83%, 54%, and 38% of the Organization's total operating revenues,

respectively. The loss of these contracts would have an adverse effect on the Organization's ability to
continue in existence.

Support funded by these contracts is recognized as the Organization performs the services or incurs

outlays eligible for reimbursement under the contract agreements. The services and outlays are
subject to audit and acceptance by the awarding agency or their representatives and, as a result of
such audit, adjustments could be required.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization also expanded services to include COVID

contract services (See Note 1). These contracts represented 35% and 53% of the Organization's total

operating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These services are
expected to be temporary, however, the Organization is prepared to adjust recourses as these
contracts close out and therefore does not believe that these contracts ending will have an adverse

effect on the Organization's ability to continue.

The Organization grants unsecured credit for services provided based on these contracts and other
privately funded services. At June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Organization had extended credit
(accounts receivable) of approximately $7,708,000, $6,633,000, and $9,037,000, respectively.

The Organization's employees maintain credit cards that are guaranteed by the Organization. At June
30, 2023, the balance on these cards was approximately $338,000, and the available credit line was
approximately $339,000. The Organization monitors the employees' payments of these balances and
may withhold payment from the employees' payroll checks.

The Organization is involved in various litigation as of June 30, 2023, arising in the ordinary course of
business. The ultimate outcome of such litigation is uncertain. However, management and legal

counsel are of the opinion that the resulting outcome of such litigation would have a minimal adverse
economic impact on the Organization.

NOTE 13: DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board of Directors has established a severance pay program for the benefit of all employees. This

program is intended to compensate employees in the event the federal and/or state contracts are
eliminated, either through termination or nonrenewal. For the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and
2021, employees who would be terminated for this reason are entitled to one week's severance pay
for each year of service up to 12 years. Any expense that would be incurred under this plan will be
recognized when it becomes likely that payment of severance pay will be made. At June 30, 2023,
2022, and 2021, the balance of this severance pay is included in "Designated for Future Severance

Pay" on the Statements of Financial Position.

NOTE 14: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The
Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities (see Note 5), and a line of credit (see Note 7).

The Organization monitors cash weekly to meet general expenditures and transfers funds from its
investment account or draw on the line of credit as necessary for short-term cash flow delays.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, to

meet general expenditures within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date.

2023 2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $  8,412,229 $ 11,161,937 $  7,213,063

Accounts and interest

receivable 7,721,066 6,637,072 9,040,836

Investments 14,444,569 13,541,401 15,645,331

Less: Designated for future severance pay 2,063,269 1,911,112 1,869,446

$ 28,514,595 $ 29,429,298 $ 30,029,784

NOTE 15: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

During the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, functional expenses were incurred as follows:

June 30, 2023

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 16,951,858 $ , 1,042,468 $ 17,994,326

Leave 2,555,202 157,127 2,712,329

Fringe 5,965,216 366,837 6,332,053

Physician advisors 39,566 - 39,566

Consultants 6,495,623 173,929 6,669,552

Travel 591,479 33,511 624,990

Other costs 5,378,899 586,148 5,965,047

Pass through costs 735,641 - 735,641

$ 38,713,484 S  2,360,020 $ 41,073,504
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021

June 30, 2022

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 17,248,691 . $  823,670 $ 18,072,361

Leave 2,656,536 126,857 2,783,393

Fringe 6,326,603 302,112 6,628,715

Physician advisors 18,905 - 18,905

Consultants 9,784,466 114,637 9,899,103

Travel 320,602 8,131 328,733

Other costs 5,945,875 454,675 6,400,550

Pass through costs 246,466 - 246,466

S 42,548,144 $  1,830,082 $ 44,378,226

June 30, 2021

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries S 16,581,050 S  746,451 s 17,327,501

Leave 2,381,665 107,219 2,488,884

Fringe 5,440,372 244,917 5,685,289

Physician advisors 33,342 - 33,342

Consultants 15,047,641 309,474 15,357,115

Travel 115,612 19,219 134,831

Other costs 8,306,327 321,440 8,627,767

Pass through costs 512,634 - 512,634

S 48,418,643 S  1,748,720 s 50,167,363

NOTE 16: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 6, 2023, the date that the financial

statements v>/ere available to be issued.

19



Supplemental Information



Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30,2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Direct programs:

Harold Rogers Prescription Drug

Monitoring Program (PDMP)

Pass-through program from Arkansas Department

of Human Services:

Harold Rogers Prescription Drug

Monitoring Program (PDMP)

Total United States Department of Justice

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES;

Direct programs:

Telehealth Program - Rural Communities

Opioid Response (Planning)

Primary Care Training and Enhancement

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Human Services:

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Grants

Medicaid Cluster-Medical

Assistance Program Title XIX

Opioid STR

National Organizations of State and Local Officials

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Health:

Injury Prevention and Control Research and State

and Community Based Programs - Substance Use Disorder

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local, and Territorial

(STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health

or Healthcare Crises - Historically Black

Colleges and Universities

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations

Total United States Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

ASSISTANCE

LISTING FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

16.754

16.754

93.211

93.884

93.243

93.590

93.778

93.788

93.011

93.136

93.391

93.898

$  249,766

67,557

317,323

358,204

395,917

56,662

18,697

16,639,793

247,717

1,286,959

94,193

164,200

10,000

19,272,342

S 19,589,665

See Independent Auditor's Report.

21



Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards

Year ended June 30, 2023

PROGRAM AGENCY/

PROGRAM NAME

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Medicaid Managed Care Services

Medicaid Review Agent for Arkansas

Medicaid Inspections of Care

Community Based Child Abuse Prevention

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

STATE

AWARD

1,606,452

4,000

12,507,064.

STATE

EXPENDITURES

S  9,349,111 $ 9,248,447

1,547,501 1,704,620

30,714

1,565,485

4,000

12,522,552

30,710

$ 12,537,778 $ 12,553,262

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year ended June 30, 2023

NOTEl:

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Awards includes the federal
and state grant activity of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200m Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
Arkansas Department of Human Services. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the
operations of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc., they are not intended to and do not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

NOTE 2:

Expenditures reported on the schedules are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de-

minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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LANDMARK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical
Care, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2023, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 6,2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 6,2023
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LANDMARK
CERTlFiED P.U8LIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s (a nonprofit organization) compliance

with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (0MB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization's major federal
program is identified in the summary of independent auditor's results section of the accompanying

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the

year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing

Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in

accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's

compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements

of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the

Organization's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofCompiiance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the

compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of

assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect

material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance

require'ments referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each major federal

program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform

Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the

compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the

audit In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test

and report on internal control over cornpliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal

control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.^

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in

internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over

compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that

there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of

a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention

by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in. the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that" we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 6, 2023
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2023

SEaiON I. SUMMARY OP INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor's report were:

El Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

2. The independent auditor's report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed:

Significant deficiency(jes)? □ Yes S None reported
Material weakness(es)? □ Yes 13 No

3. Noncompliance considered rnaterial to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit?
□ Yes 13 No

4. The independent auditor's report on internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? DYes 0 None reported
Material weakness(es)? DYes 0 No

5. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor's report on compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program were:

0 Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by the Uniform Guidance?

□ Yes 13 No

7. The Organization's major program was the Medical Assistance Program Title XIX (ASLN 93.778) and
National Organizations of State and Local Officials {ASLN 93.011).

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined
.  in Uniform Guidance was $750,000.

9. The Organization qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in the Uniform Guidance?
0 Yes □ No
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30,2023

SEaiON II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30,2023.

SEaiON III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2023.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year ended June 30,2023

There were no prior year audit findings for the year ended June 30,2022.
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Core Competencies

10 yean program evaluation and survey experience

AFMC ArcGIS Administrator

AFMC. REOCap Administrator

13 years REDCap system design, development, testing,

user tralning> technical assistance

REDCap system quality assurance and quality control

Direct program evaluation operations

Collaborate with clients and stakeholders to develop

projects and solutions

Data collection, analysis;'and reporting

.Survey and evaluation design

'Create and maintain data dictionaries
' ' a ' ,

Develop user guides and training materials

Develop StandardOperating Procedures:(SOP$) for

using, rnanaging, and updating REDCap systems
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Kent Thompson, MPH

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Adult, Aging, and Behavioral Health Services

(DHS-DAABHS) 2018-present

Manager, Data Sciences

Supervisor, Program Evaluation

AFMC developed a data collection and management plan utilizing REDCap and the SPARS. Subgrantees

enter project-related data into the database, which provides browser-based methodology for designing

clinical and translational databases. AFMC's Analytical Services team monitors monthly and quarterly

reports in SPARS and REDCap to track progress on performance measures and objectives as well as

relevant clinical, administrative, and field activities for the projects.

Responsibilities: For each of the projects above, I performed the following duties as a Supervisor,

Program Evaluation:

•  Approve projects and project changes

•  Administer and monitor REDCap software and schedule future upgrades

• Work with the Information Technology department to ensure system integrity by evaluating,

implementing, and managing technical solutions

•  Provide ongoing technical support and end user education

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 2020- present

Manager, Data 5c/ences

Lead Evaluator

AFMC developed evaluation protocol for the prevention, treatment, and recovery programs in the state.

Project includes staff and client interviews and data collection analysis. Created virtual data collection

instruments for state and federal reporting purposes, geospatial data dashboards, and intensive

evaluations of the prevention, treatment, and recovery programs. AFMC's team created the New

Hampshire Substance Abuse Block Grant Report in REDCap that replaced their WITS system.

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Adult, Aging, and Behavioral Health Services

(DHS-DAABHS) 2018-present

Manager, Data Sciences

Lead Evaluator

AFMC developed a data collection and management plan utilizing REDCap and the SPARS. Subgrantees

enter project-related data into the database, which provides browser-based methodology for designing

clinical and translational databases. AFMC's Analytical Services team monitors monthly and quarterly

reports in SPARS and REDCap to track progress on performance measures and objectives as well as

relevant clinical, administrative, and field activities for the projects.

Responsibilities: For the two projects listed above, I performed the following duties as a Lead Evaluator:

•  Collect, analyze, interpret, and report data for the purposes of providing and informing

substance misuse policies, programs, and practices

•  Design evaluation protocol

•  Assist in data collection, analysis, and reporting
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Kent Thompson, MPH

•  Manage staff and activities

W,:. - . •AFMC PASf>ROjECti^' V-

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Adult, Aging, and Behavioral Health Sciences

(DHS-DAABHS) 2016-2022

Department of Justice, Category 6 Grant: Data Collection Through Collaboration: Building a

Comprehensive Dashboard and Archival Risk Factors 2018 - 2022

Program Manager

Data-sharing initiative that included receiving and compiling an opioid database from the AR

Department of Health Prescription Monitoring Program, the State Crime Laboratory, AR Coroner's

Association, and the Arkansas Hospital Association. AFMC developed an online dashboard that protects

patient confidentiality that is available to the public and stakeholders. The data helps support in-depth

research and identifies spikes in drug crimes, areas of special need, and resource gaps.

State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis (STR) Grant 2018 - 2021

Lead Evaluator

AFMC evaluated outcomes of education, training programs, naloxone distribution and assessed

availability of treatment/prevention resources across the state, primarily Medication-Assisted

Treatment (MAT) with buprenorphlne. AFMC's statistical efforts informed need for additional measures

and evaluated high-needs communities by assessing program implementation & progress toward goals.

Prescription Drug/Opioid-Related Deaths (PDO) Grant 2016 - 2021

Lead Evaluator

AFMC evaluated outcomes of education, training programs, and naloxone distribution and assessed

availability of treatment/prevention resources across the state, primarily Medication-Assisted

Treatment (MAT) with buprenorphine. AFMC's statistical efforts informed the need for additional

measures and served to evaluate high-needs communities by assessing program implementation and

progress toward goals.

State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW) 2017 - 2020

Lead Evaluator

AFMC provided policy-relevant analysis to state and community leaders by comprehensively assessing

the health and societal factors that contribute to substance abuse.

Partnership for Success (PFS) Grant 2017 - 2020

Lead Evaluator

AFMC's evaluation team members provided a state-level evaluation plan, submitted community-level

outcomes data, and provided technical assistance for both contracting agencies and 31 community-level

sub-recipients of PFS funding located throughout Arkansas. AFMC reported evaluation findings to the

State, funded subrecipients, and federal partners.

Responsibilities: For each of the projects above, I performed the following duties as a Lead Evaluator:

•  Provide statewide needs assessment

•  Assist in data collection, research, and planning
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Kent Thompson, MPH

•  Perform substance abuse primary evaluation activities

•  Oversee internal and federal reporting programs

2018-2019Alabama Department of Mental Health

State Targeted Response to Opioid Crisis (STR) Grant

Lead Evaluator

Designed to provide states with the support needed for reducing unmet treatment needs and reducing
opioid overdose-related deaths through the provision of prevention, treatment, and recovery activities
for opioid use disorder (CUD). AFMC evaluated these services.

Medication Assisted Treatment - Prescription Drug and Opioid Addiction (MAT-PDOA) Grant

Lead Evaluator

Designed to affect targeted capacity expansion in Jefferson and Walker counties which had experienced
significantly higher opioid overdose and subsequent death rates per population when compared to
other Alabama counties. Grant objectives included increasing access to MAT for sufferers of opioid use

disorder, raising awareness of the opioid epidemic in the state, reducing the misuse of prescription
opioids, and making Naloxone available in these underserved areas.

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR 2015-present

Manager, Data Sciences 2022 - present
Supervisor, Program Evaluation 2017 - 2022
•  Manage and direct Analytic and Program Evaluation staff to conduct activities for multiple

contracts

o Needs Assessments

■  Annual Opioid Needs Assessment to determine which Arkansas counties are at

highest risk for opioid overdose and need intervention

o  Evaluation Plans, evaluations, data-driven Instruction, and analysis

o  Data Dashboards

■  Ex. Arkansas Opioid Response Dashboard

o  Surveys

o Treatment and Recovery Center Site Visits, both in person and virtual

o  Interviews

o  Focus Groups

■  Arkansas Works Medicaid Expansion

■  Arkansas Prevention Tools

•  - Collaborate with clients and stakeholders to design projects and solutions

•  Design, develop, test, perform walkthroughs, and develop reports for external REDCap systems

Statistician II 2015-2017

•  Implemented and managed local (AFMC) install of REDCap electronic data capture system;

included creation and distribution of numerous electronic surveys as well as utilized the double-

data entry feature to allow data entry staff to enter paper data accurately and efficiently
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Kent Thompson, MPH

Data analysis with multiple projects associated with Arkansas's Medicaid program and the State
Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW)

Created yearly report/informational tools for the SEOW

Technical assistance for subrecipients of the PFS grant

Salesforce administrations specifically with Patient-Centered Medical Home - Quality Assurance

program

2011-2015University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR

Childhood Obesity Prevention Research Program - Arkansas Children's Hospital
Administrative Specialist 2011-2015
•  Conducted statistical analysis, including agreement analysis and logistic analysis
•  Data management

•  Created and implemented a mobile REDCap system

•  Created physical and electronic data collection instrument

•  Collected data on numerous populations including middle school students, parolees, medical

students, etc.

•  Trained and.supervised masters-level dietetic and public health interns

•  Graphical design including the creation of newsletters, scientific posters, and various other

publicity materials

• Website design and management

SELECTED^ADDtTIONALSTECHNICAUEXPERIENCE

Lead Evaluator

Analyzing Health Disparities in Arkansas January-August 2014

Conducted a Bayesian analysis of the 10-year disparity in life expectancy between counties in northwest

and southeast Arkansas

CONFERENCES

REDCapCon 2015 - 2017, 2020 - 2022

Provides REDCap administrators, technical team members, and end users who maintain and support
REDCap at their own institutions and who provide global support of REDCap through consortium efforts

to connect, increase their knowledge base, and learn about upcoming features of the REDCap platform.
Harvard Catalyst, Boston, Massachusetts 2022
Online/Virtual via Zoom 2021

Online/Virtual via Zoom 2020

Weill Cornell Medicine, New York City, New York 2017

Duke University, Durham, North Carolina 2016
Oregon Clinical and Translational Research Institute, Portland, Oregon 2015
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Sydney S. Lewis-Suttles 2

EXPERIENCE

Jan 2023

Current

Aug 2021 -
Jan 2023

Supervisor Data Sciences
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care
Responsible for managing Survey Research, data collection and reporting by
controlling internal utilization and external dissemination of the survey
research, managing related staff and coordinating with appropriate staff to
provide improved readability, timely analysis and reporting, benchmarking,
and trending of sur\'ey research data for research and quality improvement
within AFMC, and to optimize related services to all AFMC clients. Support
the organization's mission, vision, and values by exhibiting the following
behaviors: Honesty, Excellence Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.

Healthcare Data Scientist II

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

Feb 2019 - Statistician

Aug 2021 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

October 2018 - Principle Investigator
Fob 2019 Integrated Learning Experience, UAMS

ILE title: "A Preliminary Analysis of Potential Indicators of the Opioid
Epidemic in Arkansas." The purpose of this analysis is to identify possible
indicators of opioid-rclated over dose deaths throughout the 75 counties in
Arkansas. Statistics will be analyzed using SAS and R. Research will be
collected and analyzed over two semesters. Research will then be presented
during Student Research Day at UAMS.

Aug. 2015 - Researcher
May 2016 Senior Thesis, Department of Psychology, Lyon College

Senior thesis title: "Perceptions of Yourself and Others: The Relationship
between Emotional Intelligence and Gender." The purpose of this study was
to determine if there was a relationship between emotional intelligence and
different aspects of gender: masculinity, femininity, and androgyny.
Participants were asked to predict the emotions of a series of facial
expressions after being primed to think in a masculine way, feminine way, or
androgynous way. Research was conducted and data was analyzed
independently over the course of two semesters. Statistics were analyzed
using SPSS. Research was subsequently presented to an audience of
approximately 100 peers and colleagues.

Aug. 2015 - Researcher
Dec. 2015 Intermediate Research Methods, Department of Psychology,

Lyon College
Research included: examination of the relation.ship between emotional
intelligence in student athletes versus emotional intelligence in college
students. Statistics were analyzed using SPSS. Research was conducted and
data was analyzed with a group of three other student researchers.



Sydney S. Lewis-Suttles 3

Aug. 2014 - Researcher
Dec. 2014 Psychology of Propaganda, Department of Psychology, Lyon

College
Research included: content analysis of the types of messages conveyed in a
variety of political propaganda commercials. Statistics were analyzed using
SPSS. Research was collected and data was analyzed with two other student
researchers.

AWARDS AND HONORS

2016 Member of Psi Chi, the International Honor Society in Psychology
2014 Dean's List, Lyon College
2012-2013 Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society
2012-2013 Dean's List, University of Arkansas Community College at.Batesville

ACTIVITIES

Member, Circle K International, Lyon College & University of Arkansas Community
College at Baicsvillc, August 2012 - May 2016

Volunteer, Big Brothers Big Sisters Organization, Batesville, AR, November 2012 -
May 2013

Volunteer, Arkansas Special Olympics, 2011 - Present

REFERENCES

Patrick Mulick, Ph.D., Vice President for Student Life and Dean of Students; Assistant
Professor

Department of Psychology
Lyon College

D. Keith Williams, PhD., Professor
Department of Biostatistics
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences

Jennifer Daniels, Ph.D., Assistant Professor

Department of Psychology
Lyon College



Jason Bass

JOB OBJECTIVE

To obtain a job as a statistician with responsibilities centered around healthcare data

EXPERIENCE

Healthcare Data Scientist III Sept 2021 - Present

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

Job Responsibilities

Provide statistical support for the development of measurement/re-measurement techniques, data
analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys and HEDIS needs. Assist in the
coordination of data activities for specific projects and assure compliance with established

protocols and contractual requirements. Support the organization's mission, vision, and values by
exhibiting the following behaviors: Honesty, Excellence Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.

Lead Actuarial Analyst Dec 2013 - Sept 2021

Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield

Job Resporisibilities

Use CMS-HCC MA Risk Adjustment Model to project mid-year payment

Built tool to summarize HOC history of any chosen MA member

Calculate ROI for MA In Home Assessment program

Built tool to identify gaps in HCC history in order to target members for In Home Assessment

Support in MA bid {OOPC and TBC calculation, PBP edits, ran consistency tests, upload bid)

Support in MA MLR calculation

Monthly reporting for accounting (LICS, Gap discount, rebates)

Mathematics Instructor Aug 1999 - Dec 2013

Pulaski Technical College

Job Responsibilities

•  Taught College Algebra, Trigonometry and Calculus

•  Mentored three students who eventually became actuaries

ACTUARIALEXAMS

•  Exam P/1: Passed March 2013

•  Exam FM/2: , Passed October 2013

•  ExamMFE: ^ Passed July 2014

•  Exam C: Passed October 2017

•  VEE Requirements: Econ: Passed June 2014



Corporate Finance: Passed August 2015

Statistics: Passed July 2016

•  FAP Requirements: Interim Assessment: Passed December 2015

Final Assessment: Passed March 2016

EDUCATION

Master of Science in Applied Mathematics May 1998

University of Arkansas at Little Rock

Bachelor of Science in Mathematics May 1996

University of Arkansas at Little Rock

LEADERSHIP

Supervise Summer Intern Summer 2018, 2019

Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield

Job Responsibilities

•  Taught intern CMS-HCC Risk Adjustment Model

• Worked on intern presentation skills

•  Mentored intern on SOA exams

Supervise Summer Intern Summer 2016

Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield

Job Responsibilities

•  Taught intern CMS-HCC Risk Adjustment Model

• Worked on intern presentation skills

•  Mentored intern on SOA exams

Mathematics Department Chair Aug 2000 - May 2013

Pulaski Technical College

Job Responsibilities

•  Supervised 10-12 part time instructors

•  Planned schedule of classes for the entire department

SKILLS

•  Proficient in Microsoft Excel, Word and PowerPoint

•  Proficient in SAS

Hobbies

•  Camping

•  Shelter dogs

•  Pyrotechnics '



Diego Caraballo

Authorized to work in the US for any crnploycr

Work Experience

Healthcare Data Scientist

AFMC - Little Rock. AR

September 2021 to Present

Currently working on maintaining and updating AFMC's dashboards on Methamphetamine Use and one

Peer Recovery Support in New Hampshire. Other projects include working with MidSOUTH on the

state's SYNAR project, and AFMCs yearly Arkansas Risk Factors report.

Demographic Researcher
University of Arkansas at Little Rock - Little Rock, AR

Januai7 2019 to September 2021

Working as support for various projects as part of the Arkansas Economic Development Institute doing

data gathering and analysis. Independently created short blog posts discussing different aspects of

demographic trends, impacts, and inequalities in Arkansas.

Auditor

RSM Puerto Rico - San Juan

March 2018 to May 2018

Worked across Puerto Rico auditing various communications towers as a subcontract from Sprint and

Open Mobile (PR Wireless)

Independent Researcher

University of Texas at Austin - Austin. TX

August 201 7 to May 2018

Provided consultation and data analysis for Erin Rodriguez on a project related to predictors on childhood

asthma.

Independent Researcher
Kenyon College - Gambier. OH

Juno 2016 to May 20 I 7

Provided consultation and data analysis for Irene Lopez on a project related to predictors on childhood

panic attacks.

Research Assistant

Puerto Rican Census Department - San Juan. PR

August 2016 to October 2016

Internship. Assisted in editing databases and creating map charts on QGIS to illustrate the prevalence

of various causes of death in Puerto Rico.

Research Assistant

Center for Behavioral Research - University of Puerto Medical Sciences campus - San Juan, PR

October 2015 to May 2016

Performed data analysis on survey data for Rafael Ramirez, Ligia Chavez, and Irene Lopez.



Research Assistant

Center for Socio-mcdical Research - University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences campus - San Juan, PR

201 3 to 2014

Prepared data bases and documented descriptive analysis of variables utilizing SPPS and SAS.

Education

SAS Certified Specialist: Base

Programming Using SAS 9.4
SAS Global Certification Program

2023

Master's in Demographic Studies

University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences Campus

201 5 to 2018

Certificate in Sampling Program for Survey Statisticians
University of Michigan

2017

Bachellors in mathematics

University of Puerto Rico in Cayey - Cayey, Puerto Rico. US

August 2009 to May 201S

Skills

• Research (4 years)

• Data Analysis

• Statistics

• Blogging

- SAS

• R

- SQL

Languages

• Spanish - Fluent

• English - Fluent

Publications

Self-Reported health Status and Mortality Among Older Adults in Puerto Rico
Between 2002 and 2006

Demography master's thesis. Utilized survey data to research various demographic, medical, and

economic predictors in relation to how elderly people in Puerto Rico viewed their health and their

mortality.

What Predicts an Ataque de Nervio? — Preliminary Results of a Longitudinal
Study with Puerto Rican Children
September 2016



In coordination with other researchers, utilized survey data to study various predictors and their

relationship to childhood panic attacks.

Does the Predictive Power of Comparative Health Status for Subsequent
Mortality Vary by Comparison Frame Among Elder Puerto Ricans?
2016

Used data from the Puerto Rican Elderly Health study to explore how mortality was affected based on

how elderly people compared their health to others.
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Linda Miller Newell

LMN

Skills

My position requires oversight, management, coordination, development and interpretation of all
survey research; establishing procedures to use sun'ey research more effectively upon production of
reports and for encrypting identifiers within the reports to communicate with Medicaid and other
stakeholders to ensure required privacy, review project performance, implement changes as needed to
improve and effectively document services ensuring accuracy, consistency, and quality. My skills
include statistical analysis using SAS and SQL I am able to data mine with large data sets to provide
descriptive statistics, one- and two-sample tests, ANOVA, correlation, linear and multiple regression,
analysis of categorical data and logistic regression. I also have experience with REDCap, Microsoft
Office, Sage, Quicken and QuickBooks.

Certifications

SAS Certified Base Programmer

SAS Certified Advanced Programmer Performance -Based Delta

Aug 2015

Dec 2021

Education

Graduate Certificate in Applied Statistics, 4.0 CPA May 2015

University of Arkansas, Little Rock, Arkansas

Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics, Minor in Statistics, 3.8 GPA May 2013

University of Arkansas, Little Rock, Arkansas

Damerow Endowed Mathematics and Statistics Scholarship Recipient 2011-2012

Dean's List, Chancellor's List, UALR 2011-2012

National Park Community College 2008-2010

Hot Springs, Arkansas

President's Award, NPCC 2008,2010

Experience

Manager, Data Sciences

AFMC- Kristina Bondurant, PhD

May 2022-Prcscnt

Responsibilities: Oversight, management, and development of suivey research requirements.
Monitor and report on data.project management, establish and maintain internal quality^ control
procedures for data collection, summarize report results for clients. Effectively meet, manage, and
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MAYUMI TAKADA
Senior Healthcare Data Scientist

Ucensu'rej Pnictical Nurse
2010^T^2012 Unlvereit/6f Arifansas^^

fechmcaleplfege;
North Uttle'Rpck,^^,

Core Competencies

,29 years of analytics and statistician

experience

Certified Base and Advanced programmer for

SAS9

Science'

1991,Tr.l993 AflcThTasTecH.Uriiversity

Russellville;,'^-

:A^ocldtedfApplledlSdence/Computlhg&Jhfdr^

•1987-i9% Westar^^mmuni^^

Data rhining experience

S.9fiCtDSh;J^R

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR 1994 - present

StatisticianJedm Lead, Senior Statlstldan, Statlstlcldh'.l, Data Analyst
Rroylde>tat1sti.ca];supp>rt;forJhe.cleyeloj>miBnt pf.measuremerit/re-measvrjBment
technlques'data analysis, and reporting qf.quaJlty jmproy^mentprojecS^^^

i* Use support of Initiatiyes'

[• A^ih in thTi.cdbrcIinatjdh of'data'activitie^s forTpecific j^ojects 'aiTdassurexori^^
estabii^hed protocpTs'Iand.'contractuai.requir^ments.
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Mayumi Takada

PROC SQL Programming: The Basics

and Beyond and Building Reusable

Macro Tools with the SAS Macro

Language at SCSUG Conference, TX

(Oct. 2008)

Statistics Using SAS Software at SAS

Institute.

Presented 'Reading Multiple XML Files into One SAS Data' at SCSUG Conference, TX. October 2008

Page 2 of 2



Shalini Manjanatha
Senior Healthcare Data Scientist

EDUCATION

1990 Bachelor of Science, Major in Statistics, trained in computer-based methods and techniques for

statistics collection and analysis,

Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa

WORK EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Sept. 2021 - Present

Senior Healthcare Data Scientist

•  Provide statistical support, data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys and

HEDIS needs.

•  Assist in the coordination of data activities for specific projects.

•  Produce graphs, charts, and other visual representations of data.

•  Oversee work of junior staff; validate others' work as needed.

Statistician Sept. 2019 - Sept 2021

•  Provided data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys & HEDIS needs.

•  Downloaded data from large databases and generate SAS code to edit data for accuracy and
completeness.

•  Manipulated data and conducted data analysis using SAS.

•  Interpreted, summarized, and documented results from analyses.

•  Assisted in data verification and verification of results as required.

•  Updated project methodologies as needed to accomplish project goals and objectives.

Center for Health Statistics

Arkansas Department of Health, Little Rock, AR Jun. 2007 - Aug. 2019
Software Support Analyst

•  Generated SAS edit programs for data cleaning & verification.

•  Used SAS to link different data files, and generated reports in different formats like HTML, RTF, PDF.
and Excel using SAS ODS.

•  Used SAS Macros to do common tasks like linking data files, Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) to send
data to Excel, Word or to read in data from Excel to SAS system.

•  Assisted colleagues with SAS programs for different projects like Youth Risk Behavior Survey
(YRBS), and Behavior Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) as and when needed.

•  Used various SAS Procedures like Proc Freq, Proc Print, Proc Genmod, Proc Report, Proc Summary,
Proc Means, and Proc Logistic & Proc Tabulate to analyze data and generate reports.

• Worked on data requests from inside and outside the agency and provided reports in a timely
manner.

Medical Economist Aug. 2000 - May 2007
•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation.

•  Developed survey edits criteria and implemented them with SAS edit programs, conducted statistical



analyses of surveys to identify areas of interest, developed and produced reports to convey survey
results to communities, ,and coordinated the collection of data from the Counties.

•  Used SAS to import/export data to external file formats like Excel and flat files and modify datasets
using Set, Merge, Sort and Update Formats & Functions.

• Wrote SAS macros to create tables, graphs and listings and generated graphs & charts using SAS
procedures like Proc Gplot and Proc Gchart.

• Worked on different projects like Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS), Behavior Risk Factor
Surveillance System (BRFSS), and Pregnancy Risk Assessment Monitoring System (PRAMS).

Health Program Analyst May 2000 - Jul. 2000

•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation. Developed
survey edits criteria and implemented them with SAS edit programs.

• Worked on County level Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) and Behavior Risk Factor Surveillance
System (BRFSS).

Arkansas Children's Hospital, Little Rock, AR Jul. 1995 - Nov. 1995
Department of Pediatrlcs/CARE

Data Analyst

•  Converted excel and text data files to SAS datasets, cleaned and prepared datasets for analysis.

•  Assisted faculties with analysis of data using SAS created and explored new methods and programs
for designs and analyses of statistical data.

Department of Psychiatry, UAMS, Little Rock, AR Feb. 1993 - Jun. 1995
Statistical Programmer/Analyst

•  Provided statistical computer programming support to assigned faculty, instructed, and advised
research staff, performed research and data analysis on schizophrenia data and provided requested
data in a timely manner.

Arkansas Children's Hospital, UAMS, Little Rock, AR

Child Study Center Aug. 1992 - Jan. 1993

Data Manager/Research Assistant

•  Organized, and entered data using dBase, performed statistical analysis using SAS for researchers
for presenting posters, papers, or articles and published results in peer reviewed journals, assisted
staff members with hardware and software problems. Helped work study students with data collection
and organization.

National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR Jun. 1992-Jul. 1992
Mathematical Statistician

•  Assisted Scientists at NCTR with analysis, inference, and documentation of statistical data, wrote
SAS programs for analyses of research data.

COMPUTER SKILLS

Experience in SAS, MS Excel, MS Access, Windows 10, MS Word, Outlook, and PowerPoint

PUBLICATIONS

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., Feldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1994), The child dissociative checklist:

preliminary findings of a screening measure. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 3(3), 51-66.

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., Feldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1995) Child sexual behavior inventory

scores for inpatient Psychiatric boys: An exploratory study. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 4(3)
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Valley View Junior High School, Joncsboro, Arkansas

January 2019 - May 2019
Student Teacher - Mathematics

•Created and executed daily lesson plans and classroom activities for over 200 students.

•Collaborated with classroom advisor and campus supervisor to develop teaching skills integrating technology.
Tart of a professional community that helped expanded my ideas and knowledge about education.
•Cultivated a classroom environment in which students felt supported, empowered and excited about learning

•Head Coach for Valley View Junior High Girls Soccer team that taught young girls to develop good sportsmanship, advanced
soccer skills teamwork and skills though training

ACTIVITIES

Arkansas State University Women's Soccer Team
Head Coach Valley View Junior High School Girls Soccer
Assistant Coach Maumelle Soccer Club

FCA Women's Bible Study
Maumelle Area Chamber of Commcree Youth Leadership Program

REFERENCES

Page 2 of2
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'2009 - 2012

'Exit Closer

Sale of vocation packages focused on generating potential customers
for the future. Most of our clients were from the United States.



Sheryl Hurt. CPHIMS, PCMHCCE

EDUCATIpN,

•: Efachelo^of Scienra^^
lUhiversityof'Arkansas;
1998

Littje Rock,^AR

LICENSURE AND

CERTIFICAtiPNS
•  rCertifiediProfesslonal in

Core Competencies and Experience

35 years' experience in the health care industry

13 years - Education and Training.

12 years - Policy and Education

11 years r Leadership/Management

8 years - Program Coordination/Oversight

4 years - Inspection of .Care - Quality'^Assurance oversight:

'HedthraTe jhfoTmationjSrid Man^^

•  IPatieigT'Cgitere^ M^ical H6iTieTCe?tified""Coriterit Expert (PCMM'tC^^^

PRpFESSIpNAL MEiyiB^^^^^ AND AFFILIATIONS
•; 'AARC r-Arffericari Academy of Professional Coders
•5 IMiGMA - Medicai.^ro.up.M
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•: NGQA - Natldrial Committ^lfdrQuality.Assura^^
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Sheryl Hurt

•  Implementation of the MN BH clinical services contract reviewing Psychiatric Residential
Treatment Facilities for prior authorization.

•  Implementation of NH contract consisting of an Independent Peer Review of a
Substance Abuse Provider

•  Supports planning, development, and implementation of new state initiatives (PCMH,
EOC, ARHome)

•  Operation implementation of new contracts including policies, procedures, and training
•  Subject matter content expert for proposal preparation
•  Reporting of deliverables and contract requirements
•  Prepare board report of all Provider Outreach and Inspection of Care contract activity for

AFMC Board Meetings

•  Oversee annual AR Medicaid Conference for physicians, providers, hospitals, medical
staff, FQHCs.and RHCs. Oversee annual DPSQA Medicaid Conference for behavioral
health providers and waiver providers.

Manager, Outreach Services, Provider Relations (2015 to 2019)
Managed Provider Relations Representatives contract
Responsible for annual budget
Managed contract deliverables to ensure timely completion.
Prepared monthly and quarterly activity reports and board reports.
Attended state-wide and national conferences to enhance knowledge.

Implementation and update of policies and procedures for the contract
Responsible for overseeing conferences and quarterly exhibits.
Responsible for and hosting of large Medicaid Conference held annually.
Maintained and built strong relationships with stakeholders.
Available by phone or email to ensure provider and stakeholder issues were resolved in a
timely manner.
Implementation of ConnectCare service line for providers across the state
Educated and collected data from providers across Arkansas on social determinants of
health (SDOH) project with Arkansas Childrens Hospital

Provider Relations Representative and Health Information Technology (HIT) Specialist (2010 to
2015)

Educated providers and managed territory of Central and greater Arkansas.
Maintained feedback and professional relationship with providers.
Helped develop educational material.
Performed focus visits with providers and hospitals.

Team Lead for Episodes of Care project which eventually transitioned to PCMH.
SIMS project - assisting in recruitment of providers for CMS.

Arkansas Pediatric Clinic, Little Rock, AR (2007 to 2010)

Assistant Administrator/Billing Manager

Page | 2



Sheryl Hurt

Verified all credentials were current and in good standing.

Recredentialed with insurance carriers

Implemented new EMR for billing and clinical. Was the SME for all areas.
Managed all aspects of daily operations for large staff.
Managed all collections including calls, billing, and management with collection agency.
Responsible for IT management
Conduct meetings and trainings with staff.
Attended partner meetings to provide feedback and resolve issues.
Managed all patient complaints.
Deposited accounts receivable each day.
Responsible for billing and collection reporting to the partners
Reviewed and actioned outstanding accounts.

North Pulaski Diagnostic Clinic, Sherwood, AR (2000 to 2007)

Billing/Account Manager
Verified all provider credentials were current and in good standing.

Recredentialed with insurance carriers

Managed collection accounts

Responsible for checking out patients and collecting copays.
Responsible for accounts receivable and posting all payments.
Reviewed and actioned outstanding accounts.
Responsible for manually printing, stamping, and mailing patient bills.

Snyder Healthcare (1999 to 2000)

Pharmaceutical Sales

•  Managed south Arkansas territory.
•  Provided samples to providers while educating of the efficacy, uses and target

population. Managed stock for reporting purposes.
•  Answered provider questions in a complex environment providing decision making

criteria while building relationships.
•  Achieved sales targets through efficiency and territory management.
•  Collaborated with other sales specialists to identify opportunities to move sales forward.
•  Customer-focused and effectively supported business goals.

Page | 3



Walter Lee Manns, MBA, LADAC

EDUCATION:

Franklin Pierce University, Rindge, NH, 2001

Master of Business Administration

Antioch University, Keene, NH, 1998

Master of Arts, Substance Abuse Counseling

Arkansas Tech University, Russellville, AR, 1995

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION AND LICENSURE:

LADAC - Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

AADC - Advanced Alcohol and Drug Counselor

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Oct. 2019 - Present

Outreach Specialist, Substance Abuse Team Lead

On behalf of Arkansas Department of Health, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA):

•  Conduct license reviews of alcohol and drug abuse treatment programs

•  Investigate complaints and incidents reported to DPSQA

•  Conduct Quality of Care record reviews for mental health and substance abuse fee-for-service

providers contracted with Arkansas Medicaid

On behalf of New Hampshire Division for Behavioral Health Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

•  Conduct annual Independent Peer Review of clinical records

•  Conduct client/staff interviews

•  Review policies and procedures to ensure contract compliance

Arkansas Community Corrections Sept. 2018 - Sept. 2019

Counselor/Advisor

•  Provided individual and group counseling to Drug Court participants

•  Functioned as Court Liaison providing treatment recommendations to presiding judge

•  Provided substance counseling to parolees participating in Vivitroi pilot program

CATAR Clinic & Stockton Medical Group Aug. 2016 - Aug. 2018

Clinic Administrator

•  Provided oversight of daily operations for outpatient medication assisted treatment clinic

•  Provided management support for 3 additional satellite medication assisted treatment clinics

•  Monitored compliance with regulations and standards of DEA, U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Arkansas Division of Behavioral Health Services,

Arkansas Board of Pharmacy, and CARF

•  Provided ongoing reports to state/federal agencies and clinic owners/stakeholders

•  Provided community outreach and marketing

•  Facilitated quarterly focus groups to solicit feedback from consumers

•  Facilitated group therapy and crisis intervention to patients on an as-needed basis



University of Arkansas Medical Sciences Sept. 2014 - Aug. 2016
Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

•  Provided federally mandated group and individual counseling to outpatient methadone and

suboxone patients

•  Monitored treatment compliance

•  Conducted prior authorization and concurrent review from third party payers

•  Provided crisis stabilization and case management to assigned patients

Arkansas Department of Community Corrections Feb. 2014 - Sept. 2014

Substance Abuse Counselor

•  Provided substance abuse counseling to inmates in a community corrections detention facility

Bridgevyay Hospital June 2003 - Sept. 2013

Director of Intake/Admissions

•  Conducted intake assessments to determine appropriate level of care

•  Completed prior authorizations with third-party payer to ensure appropriate reimbursement
•  Provided reports to CEO, Marketing Director, and regional leadership regarding intake activity

and trends

•  Insured ongoing compliance with standards of: Joint Commission, CMS, and Arkansas
Department of Health



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)

NAME JOB TITLE

a

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Krlsty Bondurant, PhD, MPH, CIC

Director and Epidemiologist, Data

Sciences and Public Health

Programs

$9,333.00 $150,201.00

Kent Thompson, MPH Manager, Data Sciences $19,346.00 $96,728.00

Sydney Lewis. MPH Supervisor, Data Sciences $20,545.00 $76,067.00

Jason Bass, MS Healthcare Data Scientist III $12,012.00 $80,943.00

Diego Caraballo, MS Healthcare Data Scientist II $12,379.00 $80,943.00

Tonoka Settles Healthcare Data Specialist $9,379.00 $37,655.00

Linda Newell Manager, Data Sciences $11,383.00 $96,728.00

Mayumi Takada Senior Healthcare Data Scientist $13,693.00 $87,564.00

Shalini Manjanatha Supervisor, Data Sciences $8,449.00 $92,314.00

Shayla Dixon, MS Healthcare Data Scientist II .  $6,507.17 $71,095.00

Fernando Murillo Healthcare Data Specialist $9,402.23 $38,911.00

Sheryl Hurt
Director, Provider Policy and
Inspections of Care

$2,797.00 $118,822.00

Lee Manns, t_ADAC
Team Lead, Outreach Specialist -
Substance Abuse

$5,702.00 $66,070.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

PmSION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
6027I-9544 1-800-852-3345 Eit 9544

Fai: 603-271-4332 TDD Acccu: 1-800-735-2964 irww.dhhs.nh.gov

Decembers, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
-and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (VC#333439-
P001), Little Rock, Arkansas, for the continued provision of program evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System, by exercising a contract reneyiral option by Increasing the price limitation by $808,200
from $801.700 to $1.609,900 and extending the completion date from June 30. 2022 to June 30,
2024. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 16.50% Federal Funds. 8.50% General
Funds and 75% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020. item
#14.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line rtems
wHhin the price limitation and encumbrances between stale fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920610-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502

$298,201 $0 $298,201

.2022 074-500585
Community

Grants
9205B502

$303,074 $0 $303,074

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502

$0 $164,517 $154,517

2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92058502
$0 $451,633 $451,633

• .

Subtotal >601,275 $606,150 $1,207,425

7Vie Z)eporlm»fii of Health and Human Servicee' Mis$ion i$ lojow eemmunUUt and famtUn
in providittg oppcrlunitiet for eititent to ochieuo health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council
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05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal
Year

Class f

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
G2057501

$99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 .
$101,025 $0 $101,025

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants'
92057501

$0 $101,025 $101,025

2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501
$0 $101,025 $101,025

Subtotal $200,425 $202,030 $402,475

Total $801,700 $808,200 $1,609,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing program evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System in New Hampshire.

New Hampshire continues to face significant challenges concerning substance misuse.
Evaluating programs, translating research and data to practice, and disseminating findings helps
to ensure a consistent approach to improving outcomes for individuals and families in New
Hampshire who are in ne^ of services.

The Contractor v«ll continue to provide ongoing evaluation of the Alcohol and Other Drug
Service system and programs by collecting, analyzing, and reporting on data that enables the
Department to make evidence-informed decisions, while continuing to expand and improve upon
the system.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
submission and review of monthly reports to ensure:

•  Evaluations assess program performance at a!) stages of development and are
implemented as designed or operating as intended.

•  Data collection, analysis, interpretation and reporting inform and aid In the
improvement of substance misuse policies, programs, and practices.

• Work products are delivered within the agreed upon timeframes.

• Approved changes to work plans and timelines are made within five (5) business
days of receiving approval from the Department.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, of the original agreement, the parties have the option
to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional ypars, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
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His Ercellency. Goverrwr Chrlstophor T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3 -

of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to'address challenges that address fiscal responsibility and improve transparency and
accountability, which leads to quality Improvement and builds capacity across the Alcohol and
Other Drug Continuum of Care Service System.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN #11083464

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD)
Services System contract is by and between the State of New Harnpshire, Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. ("the

• Contractor").

WHEFiEAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020. (Item #14), the Contractor agreed to perform certairi services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1., Subsection 1.1., the Contract may be amended upon svritten
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

• WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
•  in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties herelo.agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

•June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

'$,1,609,900.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.1, Part 1.5.1.1.3 to/ead:

1.5.1.,1.3. Formatting survey in compliance with printer and online requirements;

4. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Sen/ices, Section 1, Statemerit of Work, Subsection 1.5.. NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1:1, Part 1.5.1.1.4 to read:

1.5.1.1.4. Ensuring the final document is press-ready PDF; and

5-. Modify .Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph .1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.1, Part 1.5.1.1.5 to read:

■1.5.1.1.5. Ensuring survey modality is approved by the Department in writing no [aler than five (5)
vyeeks prior to sun/ey administration.

6. .Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work. .Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.2-, to read:,
1.5.1";2. Printing, delivering and distributing approximately 45,000 surveys, in booklet form or

online participation links to more than SO 'partlcipating public high schoOls statewide,
formatted in accordance with the requirements of the CDC and the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Scop,e of Services, Section 1, Statement .of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.4, to read:
1.5.1.4. Developing clean dMasets to include a universal file and CDC sample file pf coded

results utilizing coding rules approved by the Department;
8. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH YOuth

Risk Behavior Survey; Paragraph 1.5..1. Subparagraph 1.5.1.5, to read:

1.5.1.5. Providing a cpdebook for the clean datasets;

9. Moclify Exhibit "B. Scope ,df Services, Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5., NH YOuth
Risk'Behavior Survey. Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.6, to read:

'1.5.1.6, Providing the data to the Department in clean data files in ASCII format, ensurirjg j^t any
RFP-2021-BOAS-01-P.ROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foiiridalion for Medical Cere, Inc. Contractor. Initials v

A-S-1.0 'Page 1 of 5
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protected health information (PHI) or SLID data included in the reports is disclosed in
accordance with the state rules, slate and federal laws, including the requirements of 42
CFRPart2:and

10. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit G-1 Budget SPY 2021 through Exhibit C-4 Amendment #1, Budgets SPY
2024.

.11. Modify Exhibit I, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement, by replacing it In
Its entirety with Exhibit I - Amendment #1, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate
Agreement, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas FoundaUon for Medical Care, Inc. Contractor InlUais
TTTTUTJll

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date
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12. Add Exhibit C-3 Ahriendment #1. Budget SPY 2023, which is attached hereto and inco,rporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, Budget SPY 2024, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

, w
RFP-2021-BDASt01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundalion for.Medical Care, Inc. Contractor j^^^TTTDTl
A-S-I.O Page 3 of 5 Dale
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All terms and conditions^df the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/4/2022

Date

S*1gntd by:
Name:'<at3a s. fox

Title: Director

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

12/22/2021

Date

■OocuSlgntd by:

■ ■

Name:
Title: ceo

nley

RFP-2021tBDAS-01-PROGR-01-A01 Arkansas Fdundalion for Medical Care,Jnc.

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Arnendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

y"0»«uSleA*4 by:

1/7/2022 '^4*^
V  .

Date Name; Ro'Jy" cuanno .
Title: 1/7/2022

I .hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and.Executiye Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (<^ate of rneeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title:

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PR6GR-01-A01 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

A-S-l.O Page 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUOX

AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section ,1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement
(■'Agreement") agrees to comply with the "Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act,"
Public Law 104-191 and the "Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable
Health Information." 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act,
Title XIII. Subtitle 0, Part 1 &2 of the "American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009," 42
use 17934, et sec., applicable to business associates, and also agrees to comply writh the
"Confidentiality of Substance use Disorder Patient Records," 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,42 CFR Part
2. (Part 2). as appliwble, and as these lavrs may be amended from time to lime.

(1) Deririitlons.

a. "Business'Associate" shall riiean the Contractor and its agents,that receive, use, transmit, or
have access to protected health information (PHI) as defined in this Business Associate
Agreement ("BAA") arid "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and. Human Services.

b. The folldwing terms have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA.45 CFR Parts 160,162
and 164 and the HITECH Ac as they may be amended from timd.to lime:

"Breach," "Business Associate." "Covered Entity," "Designated Record Set," "Data ,
Aggregation." "Designated Record Set." "Health Care Operations." HiTECH Act,"
■Individual." "Privacy Rule," "Required'by law." "Security Rule,",and "Secretary."

c. Protected Health lnformation^ (PHI) means protected health information defined in HIPAA
45^CFR 160.103, and.includes any information or records relating to substance use Part''2
data if applicable, as defined below.

d. "Part 2 record." means any "Record" relating to a "Patlerit, and "Patient Identifying
Information," as defined in'42 CFR Part 2.11 relating to substance use disorder Part 2
records.

e. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected healih information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
-unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals arid is developed or endorsed by
a standards.developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit" Protected'Health
Information (PHI) except as rea'sonably-necessary to provide the services outlined under
the Scope of Work of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not
limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agehts.-shall protect all PHI as required by
HIPPA and 42 CFRf.ail 2. and'not use^ disclose, maintain, store, or transmit ;RHI in any
rtiannef that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

Exhibit I - Amendment 4l Contractor Initials rH
Health Insurance Portability Act-
Business Associate'Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment Ui

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI. as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:

II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph c, and d.
below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard,

'  IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of
Covered Entity.

c. To -the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement and the BAA to
disclose" PHI to any third party or subcontractor, prior to making any such disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain a business associate agreement with'the third party or
subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restrlctionis
placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included
in Its business.associate agreement with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not disclose any PHI in response to a
request or demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis'
that it is required t>y |aw, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure the
Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI. until such lime as a court
orders the disclosure. If applicable, in any judicial proceeding, the Business Associate
shall resist any efforts to access any Part 2 records.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate .safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI in accordance with HIPAA and Part 2, as
applicable.

b. The Busiriess Associate shall imrnediately notify the Covered Entity at the following
emaii address. bHHSPrivacvdfficer@dhhs.nh.aov after the Business Associate has
determined that a known or suspected privacy or security Incident or'breach has
occurred potentially exposing or compromising PHI. This includes inadvertent or
accidental uses, disclosures, incidents or breaches of unsecured PHI-

c. Ih the eveht of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with all applicable terms
of this BAA, and the.inforrnation security requirements addendum of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate agrees to perform a risk assessrhent, based on the
information available at the time, when it becomes aware of any known or suspected
privacy or inforrnatipn security incident or breach as described above and
communicate that assessment to the Covered Entity. The risk assessrhent shall
include at a minimum, but not be limited to:

o The nature and extent of the PHI Involved, including the types of identifiers and
the likelihood of re-identification;

Exhibit I - Amendment#! ConiractofInitials T?H-
Haalih Insumncp Rortabllily Act
Business Assodale Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

^  Exhibit I - Amendment #1

0  The unauthorized access or use of the protected health information or to
whom the disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired orvlewed; and
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or.breach investigation and provide the findings in writing to"the.
Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of
Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's and
the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

g. ■ As stated In 2.c. above. Business Associate shall require, any subcontractor or third
party that receives, uses, stores,-or has access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in
writing to.adhere to the same restrictions and conditions of the use and disclosure of
PHI contained herein, and comply with the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section 3" {m). In addition, the Business Associate shall require all third party
contractors or business associates of the Business Associate receiving PHI pursuant to
the Agreement to agree to'the Business Associates' rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such third party or contractor for the purpose pf use and disclosure
of protected health information.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from. Covered Entity,
Busiriess Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements; policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure
of PHI to the Cpyered Entity, for purposes pf enabling Covered Entity to deterrhine
Business Associate's compliance with,the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) businesSdays of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI of a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set,vthe Business Asspciaite shall make such PHI available tO Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
Obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shajjdocument any disclosures of PHI and information related to
any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

1. Within ten (.10) business'days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for ari accbuntirigdf disclosures of PHI, Business Associate, shall make available

EjJiibil I - Amendment «1 Contractof Initials R.H-
Health Insurant Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I - Amendment #1

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164-528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within ten (1.0)
business'days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. Hpvyever. if forwarding the
individual's request to" Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of, such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Eritity, all PHI,
received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connectiori with the'
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any form or
platform.

o  If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
othenvise agreed to in the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to
extend the protections of the Agreertient. to such PHI and limit further uses
and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasibje, for so long as BLaiesBAssociate maintains such PHI. If
Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate
destroy ariy or all PHI, the Business Associate shali'certify to Covered Entity
that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) -Obligations of Covered Entity

■a." Cpvered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, lb the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. A current version of the Covered Entity's Notice of Privacy
Practices is attached, to the end of this BAA, Any changes in the Covered Entities'
website: httDs:/ywww:dhhs.nh.aov/oos/hioaa/Dublications.htm

b. ■ Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revbcalibn
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used pr
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to AS-CFiR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section'164.508.

c. Coyered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions pn the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 1.64,522,
to the extent that such restriction rhay affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. '

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 9 of the General Provisions (P.-37 of the Agreement, the
Exhibit I-Amendmenl#1 Cantractorlnilials R.("f

Health Insurance Portabllty Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Exhibit I - Amendment #1

Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's
knov^^edge of a material-breach by Business Associate of the BAA. The Covered Entity
may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions. Laws, and Reoulatorv References. All terms and regulations used herein, shall
refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in the .
Agreement, as amended to Include this BAA to a Section in HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2, means
the section as in effect or as amended.

b. ' Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the BAA, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity
and the Business Associate to comply with the changes in the requirements of
HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. 42 CFR Part 2, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity and Business Associate to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR
Part 2.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this BAA I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Business Associate
Agreement in section (3) I. the defense and indemnification provisions of section (3)
e and Paragraph 13 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the
termination of BAA...

Exhibit I - Amendment Contractor Initials R.H-
Health Insurance Portabikly Act
Business Associate Agreement
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties hereto have duly executed this BAA.

Departmenl of Heallh and Human Services Aritansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)

Signature of Authorized Representative
Katja S. Fox

Name of Authorized Representative

Director

Title of Authorized Representative

1/7/2022

Date

Name of the Contr or

resentativeAuthorizedSignature

Ray Hanley

Name of Authorized Representative

President & CEO
Title of Authorized Representative

January 6.2022
Date

Exhibit I - Amendment

Health Insurance PortablBty Act
Business Assodato Agreement
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STATEOF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUM^ SERVICES
DiVlSiONFORBEHAViORAL HEALTH

Sh[hl»<n. 129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
Cemr^uSSJT 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Eu 9544

Pei: 603-27M332 TOO Ac«u: 1-800-73S-2964 www.dbhf.NewHimpiMre.gov
Koiji S. Fai
Dtrefor

August 6, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Cdyncil

State House

Concord, New Harhpshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Hearth,
on behalf of the Governor's Commiission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, io enter into a contract \^th
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc (VC«TBD). Little Rock. Arkansas in the amount of
$801,700 for the provision of program evaluation, and data collection, analysis, and repof1lr>g for
the ̂ cohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system in New Hampshire, with the
option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval
through June 30,2022.16.50% Federal Fur\ds. 75% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds),
and 8.50% State Gerieral Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
.appropriation of furids in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price lirriiiation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05.95-92-92d510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHSr DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

Steto FlScel Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number TotsI Amount

2021 102-W0731 Conlrecle for Prog Svc 92050502 $298,201

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $303,074

Subrofe/ $801,275

05i9S-92-920510r33e40000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BURWU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class TItto Job Number Total Amount

202i 102-500731 Coniracls for Prog Svc ,92057501 . $99,400

2022 102-500731 Cont/acls for Prog Svc 92057501 $101,025,

Sutitots} $200,425

Total $601,700

7Ti* Dtporlmtnl of HtaUh ottd HuniOM &ryiee$'Mlu'ton it lo'join conimunitia and famlia
in proOuiing opportuniliu for ciiiitni U> oehUvt hooUh end indeptndtiia.
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His Eioeneftcy. Governor Cfwhtopher T. Sununu
ar>d Ihe Honofobie Cound)

Page 2 pf 3

.  EXPLANATION

The purpose ol this request is (or the provision of program evaluation and data colledion.
analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system In New
Hampshire.

New Hampshire continues to face slgniricant challenges concerning sutelance misuse.
To address these challenges, the Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services (Deparlrnent)
continues rts commitment to building a coordinated system of car© m New Hampshire Evaluating
proarams. translating research and data to practice, and disseminating nndii^s will help ons^e
a consistent approach to improving outcomes for New Hampshire alizens and families who seek
services within the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system.

The goal of the services is to improve the lives of New Hampshire citizens by helping
providers and the Department build quality substance misuse servlMS thorough contiriua
evaluation of our system and programs and by collectrng. analyzing, and reporting on data that
enables the Department to make evidence-informed decisions, while continuing to expand and
improve upon the system.

The Department will monitor contracted services through regularly scheduled meetings,
the submission and review of monthly reports and by using the following perfomance measures.

•  The Contractor responds to 100% of Department communicaUons within 72 business
hours.

• The Contractor makes approved changes to work plans and timelines within five (5)
business days of receiving approval. 95% of the lime.

.  The Contractor ensures 100% of worV products match the approved methodotogy for
each work product.

•  The Contractor delivers 85% of work products within the agreed upon timeframes.
The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid "^ing a

Reouest for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5^0/2020
through 6/22/2020. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed and scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the State may be unable to
collectively address chaileriges.and build capacity across the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care service system In New Hampshire.

Area served: Statevnde

Source of Funds: 16.50% Federal Funds..CFDA #93.959 FAIN #TI083041. 75% Other
Funds (Governor Commission Funds) and 8.50% Stale General Funds.
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His Exceiiency. Governor Christopher T. Sum/nu
and the HorwreMa Cbundl

PeQo 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

m, Lorl A. Shiblnetle
. Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurernent Unit

ScorinaSheet______

for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO)
Services Syatetn

RFPNamt

Bidder Name

AFMC .

2.
JSI

Mountain Plains Evaluation

NoxtStep

5.

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR

RFPNumtMr Reviewer Names
ToJepTHaldioB^Sanaoeror

Paea/Fall

NUalmum

Polnta

Actual

Polnta

275 265

27$ 163 .

276 175

276 28

275 0

276, . 0

276 . .0

1, Substance Mauu Pisnrvng and
Evaluation
Ra^na Fiynn. Piogmm Specialdi

*• IV

. Shannon OUnn. Program
'*■ Spedarcsi iv
. Diana Uacey. Program Planning
' and Review Spedatlst

Laurie Heath. Bualnesa Admin.lli

B. '"

7.

B.

9.
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rom NUMBER f-il (Viriion 11/11/1019)

Subjet(:.Progr8tTi Evtluaiton land Oatt Services for ihe AOD Services System (RFP«202l-dDAS>Ol'PROCR*OI)

Noilce; This t|rctmcni end alj.of iis •tuchmcnis shall become public upon tubmiuion to (iuvcmor end
Gxecuiive Council for tpprovtl. Any informjiion thai it private, conrtdcniial or proprleury must
be cluriy idemified to the e^erKy nrtd •(leed lo in wriiinj{ prior to signing ihe coniract.

acrecmcnt

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Centracio? hereby mvlually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department ofHulch and Hurran Serviccj

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 PIctuani Street

Concord,Nil 03301-3857

1.) Contractor Name

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Cart, Inc.

(.4 Contractor Address

1020 West 4lh Street

Linlc Rock. AR 72201

1.5 Contractor FhorK

Number

(S0I)2I2-86I0

1.4 Account Number

05-0W-092-9205I0-

3382;05-095-092.
920510-3384

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2022

l.g Price Limitslion

S80l,700 ,

1.9 ConirsctirtgOflicer for State Agency

Nathan 6. White, Director

I.IO Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603):7|.963t

l.il C^i^ioiSignotitre^ 1.12 Name and Title of Cphiractot Slgrttiory

Ray Hanky, President and Chief (i>ecutive OOtccr

1.13 -StoicAg'^cy Signature /A 1.14 Name and Title of Suie Agency Signati>ry'

(.15 Approval by the K.H. Deprirtment of Administration, Division of PerronncTTr/applkob/t)

By: Director. On;

I.Kj Approval by jJx Andrney General (Fprtn, Substance arvl Exccuiiort) 0/opptlceble)

By- CatAM^ 08/10/20
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifopplicnbit)

G&C hem number: C&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Conira'cior Initials JUi

pale-oMiidnxi
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2. SBRVICfcS TO OE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency idemified in block I.I
("Stole"), engages contractor identincd in block 1.3
("Contractor") to pcrfofm. ttnd.lhe.Cohtracior shall perform, the
work or sale ofgoods, or both, ideniiricd and more panicultrly
described in the aiuched EXHIBIT D which is incorporated
herein by rercrence ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE OATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the CoverntK end
Executive CoufKli of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicable.

this Agreement, and all obligations of (he parties hercundcr, sltall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement a.i indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval Is ret|uired. in which case the Agreement
shall become cfTcctivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTcciive Oatc'O.
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTeciive O^e. all Services performed by the Conmctor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
efTective. the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limilalion, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurroJ or Services performed.
Comractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONOmOiNAL NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ail obligations of the Slate hercundcr. including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymenls hcrcunder, arc
contingent upon the avntiabiliiy and continued appropriation of
funds arfecied by any state or federal legislative or executive
oction that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or avaiiabiliry of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT'B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hercundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of 0 reduction or termination of oppropriatvd funds, the
State shall hove (he right to withhold poymem until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon

. giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or lenninatlon.
The Slate shall t>ot be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source <o (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The coninjct price, method of payment, and terms of payment
ore identified and tnore particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State of the contract price shall be the
only and. (he complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Coniroctor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State Shall
have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract price.
S.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounu required or pcrmined by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7<or any other provision of law.
5.d Noiwiihslnr>ding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in nu
event shall the total ofall payments aulhorixcd, or aciualty made
hercunder, e.xcecd the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE RV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND RtCULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In cunrsection with the performance of the Services, the
Comractor shall comply with oil applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity law;. In addition, ifthis Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
State or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
diseriminxtc against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex, handicap. scxuiU
orientation, or national origin and will take eflirmativc oction to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of (he Coniructor'i hnuks, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, ond the covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Comnscior shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necesse^ to perform the Scrvkci. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, ond shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized lo do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for o period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with witons it is engaged in a combined elTon to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a Slate employee
or ofTicial, vvho is materially involved in the procurvmeni,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive lerminition of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, (he
Contracting Officer's dce'islon shall be final for the Stale.

Page 2 ofd
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8. EVENTOF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the rollowing acts or omissions of the
Contrvclor shall coiiscitute in event of.dc/ault hereundcr ("Event
ofDcfoull");
8.1.1 failure to perfonn the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failureid submji ony report required hereurtder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any olher'co^nam, term or condition of
this Atrecmeni.
8.2 Upon .the occurrence of any Event of Default, (he Stnic may
take anyprie, or iTMre. or all. of (he following actions;
8.2.1 give lite Contractor a Mrincn notice specily'ingtlte Event of
Ocfauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
0 greater or lesser tpecincBiion of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the rvxicc; and ifihc Everit ofOrfault is not iimitly cured,
icrminbtc this Agreement, effective two (2) days aOer giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying (he Event of
default and suifpcrtding all payments to be made under this
Agreement end ordering Ihu the portion of the contract price
svhich would otherwise accrue; to the-Contractor during the
pertod.from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Comracior;
8.2.3 give the Cdntriicidr o written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfaull and set off against any oiher.qbllgaiions the Slate may
owe lothc Coht'ractor.any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event ofDefauli; and/or
8.2.'4 give the Coniractora wrincn notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreemcm as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hctcof after
any Event of Default sKajl be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard.to (hat Event of Defauii, or any subsequent Event of
Default. Npcapfcsj failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he right of (he State to enforce each and
oU of the pr;ovisioiis' hereof upon any ftjnher or other Event of
default on the.pan of the Contractor.

9. termination. •
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion; tcrrninale the Agreement for arty reason, In whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days wrincn notice to thc Contmcior that
(he Stoic Is exercising its option loterminatc.the Agreement.
.9.2 In the event of art early icrmlnatlpn of this "Agreement for
einy reason c.thcr than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor' shall, at .the State.'s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting dmccr. not later than fifteen (I S) days after ihe'datu
of le'ririinailoo, p fcpon.("Tc'rhinailon Report") describing in
detail oil Services performed, and the contract price earned, i6
and including'ihc date cflcrminaiion. The form, subject matter,
conienl, :and number qf copies of Termination Repon shall
be IdemiMl tpthose ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, nt)hc'Stote,'s discrciion. the Contractor
shall,- wjihin 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Pogc3

submit to the State a I'ransition Plan for services tinder (he
Agreement.

la. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENtlALITV/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agrecmcnl, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, phorts. sound recordings^ video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcpicscniations, computer programs, com'puicr printoiiis, notes,
leners, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
rmishcd or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from

the State or purchas^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propetfy of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon lermirtation
of (his Agreement for.ahy reason.
iOJ.Confidcniiality of data shall be govcmed.by N.H. RSA
xhaptei 9l>A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdato requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACiTOR'S REI.ATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this. Agreement ihc^Contrecior is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an ogcnl nor an
employee of (he State. Neither thc.Coniractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind ihc State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMF.NT/pECECATION/SUBCGNTRACIS.
12.1. The Contractor .chail not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest tn.ihis Agrccmtni without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (l5).doys prior to
the assignment, and a wrrinen consent of the State. For.purposcs
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall .constitute
assignment. "Change .-of Contror means, (aj merger,
consolidation, or'a inuiuciion or scries of related transaction's in
which a third^pony together with its alTiliaies, becomes the
direct Of indirect jowncr of fifty perceni (50%) or.more of the
voting shares or sirniiar equity interests, or corhbined 'tmtihg
powcrofthc Ccniracior, or. (b) the sole of oil or subsianti&lly all
ofthe assets of the Coniratftor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted -by the
Contractor without prior written noiicc and consent of (he:Si8tc.
The State is cntiilcd to copies ofall subconiracls'and assignment
agreements and shali nbi.be bound by.any provisions'contair^
in a subcontract or an assignment agreernent to whkh It is not a;
part)-. ' ''•

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless Otherwise c.xempicd'by law,-
the Corurdcior shall indernnify and .hold harrrileis ihc'StAte, its.
olTiccryand employees.'from and against ony and aU claims,
iiabilities'and .costs" for any personal Injury or piropeny'damagcs,
patent or copyright infringement, or oihcr.claimi asserted against,
the Stale, iisorficcrs' qr.cihployces, which arise out of (or ̂ ich
may be claimed to arise but oO Ihe acts or othisiiof
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Coniractor. or subconincton. including but not limiic'd lo the
ncsiigCfKe./ecklcis or inieniionel conduct. The Stote shall not
be liable.for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Not>wlhsiondingihc foregoing, nothing herein
coniclited shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which immuni^ is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in parttgroph 13 sholl survive the
termination of this Agreenncnt.

14. INSURANCK.

H.I The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously .maintain in force, and shall require any
siibcoiiiructor or assignee lo obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general lisbliiiy Insurance egsinii all ctoims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
lus then SI.000,000 per occuncncc and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject lu subparagmph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
'801i of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The 'pojivies.dt^'ribed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall he
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by ihe N.H. pepanmeht of Insurance, and
issued by insurers.licensed in ihc'Sratc'of.New Hampshire.
14J The Contractor shall furnish to (he Contracting Offider
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnincaie(s)of

.'insurnncc for all insurance required under this Agreement.
■Coniracior shall also furnish,(b the Contracting OfTicct.ideniincd
in biKk 1.9, or his or her. successor, ccrtiriCBie(s) of insurance

' for all renewBl(s) of insurance r^uired under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The cerlincaie(s). of insurance and any
renewals (hereofshaii be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference. •

15, WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By .sighing this 6gr<xmcft|. the Contractor ogws, certifies
and worranis thai the Coniraciorjs in compliance wiih or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("ifofkurs'
Compt'niOllori").
15.2 to.ihe extent the Contractor is subject to the rcquiremcnis
of N.H. RSA chapter 28l'tA. Contractor shall molnitin, and
require any. subcontractor or assignee, to secure and .maintain,
paymcrii ^of Worker^" Compensation in connection with
activitiesAvhich the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this

• Agfteme.nt. The Cootroctof'shall furnish the Contracting Officer
Ideniiricd In block l.9,orhi.s or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensaiiph. iri the. manner dcKribed^ in N.H. RSA chapter
261-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
Dttschrd and are incorporate h'erelit by reference. The Sute
shall not be, responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim, or benefit for
Cdnlractor, or any su^njractpr or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Corhpcrtsaiioh .'lows in' ehncciion with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a paity'hcreib to the other party
shall be deemed to hnve been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a tJnitcd Sl&iCS
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addrcues given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. aMENONIENT. This Agrwmem may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument inWritin'g signed by ihc
parties hereto and only aficr approval of such amendment,
waiver ot discharge by the Governor dnd Executive Council of
the Sintc ofNcw Itompshlre unless no such approval is required
under the circumstonccs pursuant to State law.-rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OK LAW AND FORUM.This Agrccmcm shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon ar>d
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns, f he wording used in this Agreement is the wording .
chosen by Ihc piAics to express (heir mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied ogaihsioV in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be.broughi and
maintained in New Mampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFUCTINC TERMS. In the event of.a conflict
between the terms ofihis P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and anncr\dmcht thereof, the terms of (he
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties tihd this Agreement shall not be
construed lo confer any such benefii;

21. HEADINGS. Thc.hcadings throughout the Agreement are
for fefcreocc purposes only, and the. words contained therein
shall in no way be-held (oexplain.'modify. amplify or aid in the
Inicrpietaiion. construction or 'mcaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by fefcrcncc.

23. StVEHABILITY. Inthcevcntanydftheprovisions.pfthis
A^cemcht^arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
cortirory to any stole or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain iri full force,and efTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; This Agr^ccmcnt, which may be.
executed in 0 number of coumcrparis, each of vvbich shall be
deemed an original, constitutes' the entire ogrccmcnt and
understanding betw'cc'n the panic's, ami supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Siervlces for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(Abb) Services System EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P>37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Oate/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The. parlies may extend (he Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Comptetlon Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, -and required
governrneritdl approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignrnent/Delegalion/Subcontracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph'12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual cbndiliohs as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall' have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying th'e work to be perfofmed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the' State with
Q list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
;the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

Artitnsss FoundaUon to' Medical Care. inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

Scooe of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are evailable Statewide.

1.2. The Contractor shall manage projects utilizing platforms that support detailed
project management and careful monitoring of timelines and notification systems
including, but not limited to:

1.2.1. Salesforc^.

1.2.2. WpfkZone®.

1.3. Program Evaluation

1.3.1. The Comractor shall provide evaluation support and services to the
Bureau's contracted prevention, early-intervention, treatment and'recovety
supports programs, as directed by the Department and as required by
federal and state funding sources. Supports and services shall include, but
not be limited to:

1.3.1.1. Program evaluations to assess the performance of a program at
all stages of development from selection to implementation.

1.3.1.2. Process evaluations to ensure program fideilty by assessing
whether a program or process is implemented as designed or
operating as intended.

1.3.1.3. Outcome evaluations to examine the results,' either intended or
unintended, of a program's delivery.

1.3.2. The Contractor shall develop and utilize methodologies and resources, in
coltaboratibn with, and as approved by. the Department, to assist In
evaluating programs.

1.3.3. The Contractor shall complete a'process for an.lhdependient Peer Revlew
(IPR) as required through the Substance Abuse Prevention and treatirienl
Block Grant (SABG).

1.3.4. The Contractor shall participate in federal evaluation .weblnars "associated
with the Departrheht's awarded federal granls, as identified by The
Department.

1.3.5. The Contractor shall,develop evaluation documents and reports, required for
State and federal grants, as requested by and in consultation with' the
Department, Including, but not limited to:

1.3.5.1. pemonstraied progress In rneeting staled goals.

1.3.5.2. An explanation of challenges and successes that contributed,
the outcomes.

Arkansas Foundation for laical Care. inc. EKhibtlB Contractor Iniiiola RH
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New Hampshire OepaHment of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Services System EXHIBITS

1.3.5.3. Identification of opportunities for Improvement In evaluation
efforts.

1.4. Oata Collection, Analysis, Interpretation, Reporting, and Support

1.4.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the Department in the collection,
analysis, Interpretation, and reporting of data related to the Alcohol and
Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care (CoC) System for the purposes of
improving and Informing substance misuse policies, programs, and
practices.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure all client-level data disseminated is de-
identified and in aggregate format.

14.3. The Gontfactor shall ensure data collection, analysis, interpretation,
reporting and support activities include, but are not limiteditb;

1.4.3.1. Assigning lead and secondary arialysls to the igiven task.

1.4.3.2. Identifying methodologies for data collection.

1.4.3.3. Working closely with the Department and federal .partners io
ensure reporting responsibilities are clear.

1.4.3.4. Identifying reporting requirements for state and federal funding
sources.

1 ;4.3.5. Gathering and compilirig relevant substance misuse inforrtiation
and data.

1.4.3.6. Analyzing and translating data Into a variety of formats by
utilizing;

1.4.3.6.1. Statistical significance testing.

1.4.3.6.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.3.6;3. Various statistical techniques including, but rot limited
to;

1.4.3.6.3.1. Uniyariate descriptiye-'statistics and means. .

,1.4;3.6.3.2. Repealed measure analyses, and

1 .-4.3.6.3.3.- Mulliyariate statistical analyses.

1.4.3.7. . Facilitating the collection arid reporting of data including, but not
Ijmited to, creating a data.profile with regards to a subset of the
larger population who are at greater risk of. deyeloping a
.substance use'disorder (SUD) or, by proximity, are at.a greater
risk of the consequences of Indiyiduals with a SUD.

Artte.nMs.foimdalion lor Medicat Cere. inc. ExhIbilB Contractof IntUah - RH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AGO) Services System EXMIBIT B

1.4.3.6. Integrating quality data assessment procedures into regular data
management practices including, but not limited to independent
analysis of the regular data management practices.

1.4.3.9. Developing and providing a comprehensive summary report that
provides clear interpretations of the survey findings which
includes, but.is not limited to;

1.4.3.9.1. A summary report of aggregate, de-identified client-
level data. , •

1.4.3.9.2. Narrative responses and graphical illustrations, and
preparing documents as determined and requested by
the Department.

1.4.3.10. Providing technical assistance in areas related to data collection
and reporting as needed.

1.4.4. The Contractor shall design, publish, and provide data reports in user-
friendly and accessible formats that visually represent findings, as directed
by the Department including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.1. Data summaries.

1.4.4.2. Profiles.

1.4.4.3. Dashboards.

1.4.4.4. Charts.

1.4.4.5. Graphs.

1.4.4.6. Tables.

1.4.5. The Contractor shall utilize agile software, systems, and tools approved by
the Department to analyze quantitative and qualitative data including, but
not limited to:

1.4.5.1. REDCap^ for data collection

1.4.5.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.6. The Contractor shall ensure privacy by using established rules and
requirements controlling and safeguarding. data and its access,
transmission, receipt, storage, maintenance, and use.

1.5. NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey

1.5.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative assistance to the Department
for the implementation of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS). which includes, but is not
limited to:

AiVonsas Foundation for Medical Cere, inc. Exhibits Contraclof initiale Rll
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(AOD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.5.1.1. Assisting the Department with creating the survey including, but
not limited to:

1.5.1.1.1. Providing input in survey question selection, as
requested by the Department;

1.5.1.1.2. Validating questionnaire and answer options;

1.5.1.1.3. Fortnailing survey in compliance with printer
requirements; and

1.5.1.1.4. Ensuring the Tinal document is press-ready PDF.

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering and distributing approximately 45,000 paper-
based surveys to more than 80 participating public high schools
statewide, formatted in accordance with the requirements of the
CDC and the Department, in booklet form;

1.5.1.3. Collecting and scanning completed surveys in.a confidential and
secure manner as approved by the Department;

1.5.1.4. Developing a clean dataset of coded results utilizing coding rules
approved by the Department;

1.5.1.5. Providing a codebook for the clean dataset.

1.5.1.6. Providing the data to the Department in a clean data file in ASCII
format ensuring that any protected health information (PHI) or
SUD data included in the reports is disclosed in accordance with
slate rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of
42 CFR Part 2; and

1.5.1.7. Providing consultation and information regarding the clean data
format and results.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall provide YRBS evaluation Interpretation and translation
of raw data into a useable report for school level and/or regional level
reports for the Department and its providers, as requested.

1.6. Initial Planning

1.6.1. The Contractor shall conduct a virtual project ,kick-off meeting with the
Department and identified project staff within 20 business days of the
contract effective date to review proposed project deliverables for all scope
outline in Section 1, Scope of Work.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall provide an initial work plan and timeline to the
Department that defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, arid
due dates for each scope of work to the Department for approval. The
Contractor shall:

1.6.2.1. Provide the initial work plan to the Department no later than
'  days after the kick-off meeting..

A/X0ri3a5 Foundation for MeOiCAl Care. lAC. Exhibit B Contradof Inltiali kH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Eyaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.6.2.2. Ensure changes to work plans or timelines receive .Department
apprpvai prior to implementation.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall create and deliver a Health Disparities Impact
Staterhent to the Department within 10 days of the kick-off meeting that
aligns with the project work.plan in order to measure the reduction in health
disparities, determine effectiveness across programs, in order that future
reviews can t>e measured against the Health Disparities Impact Statement.
The Contractor shall ensure health disparities assessed, arid measured
include, but are not limited to;

1.6.3.1. Client access to care.

1.6.3.2. Utilization.

1.6.3.3. Outcomes across individuals by:

1.6.3.3.1.' Race.

1.6.3.3.2. Gender.

1:6.3.3.3. Age.

1.6.4. The Contractor shall contact each program to be evaluated, at the direction
of Oeparlment, in order to:

1.6.4.1. . Discuss the evaluation protocol;

1.6.4.2. Identify any special circumstances or process adjustments
heeded; and

1.6.4.3. Schedule training on REDCapTM and the data collection (oolS:

1.6.5. the Contractor shall develop and submit the' Data Collection and
Management plan, data collection templates, project reporting templates,
and YRBS projeci plan for ("he Department's review and approval within (he
first 30 days of the contract.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and.incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Cdntractdr'.shall provide written methodologies for proposed activities 16 the
Departrnent. vsmen appropriate and when requested, for approval prior to
irnplemenling such activities.

3.2. The Co'htractor shall conduct and complete an IPR of not fewer than five (5%)
percent of the entities contracted with (he State to provide SUD treatment
services; per slate fiscal year, whichls from July 'l-June -30. as required througj
ihe SABG. This includes, but is'nol iimiied to:

AjXsnsas Ppun^etfon (or Med^lCem. Ir<. Exhibit 6 Coclrsct^-lnlliDls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(AGO) Services System EXHIBIT B

3.2.1. Submitting a summary report to the Department including, bulnol limited to
results and findings' related to the IPR within 30 calendar days following
completion of the review.

3.2.2. Submitting all final documents related to the IPR to the Department prior to
June 30th of each state fiscal year.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a written monthly progress report to the Department
related to accomplishments of the contract goals and performance measures, for
each scope of work, which includes, but is not limited to: -

3.3.1. A summary of the key work performed for each scope of work during the
monthly period.

3.3.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigations
strategies for each.

3.3.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

3.4. The Contractor shall complete and submit an end of year report no later than 60-
calendar days after the end of each state fiscal year, which includes, but is not
limited to:

3.4.1. A complete program overview.

3.4.2. Accomplishments towards program goals and performance measures
' linked to outcomes for each scope of work.

3.4.3. End-of-year financial report.

Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by requiring that:

4.1.1. The Contractor responds to 100% of Department communications within 72
business hours.

4.1.2. The Contractor makes approved changes to work plans and timelines within
five (5) business days of receiving approval. 95% of the time.

4.1.3. The Contractor ensures 100% of work products match the approved
methodology for each work product.

4.1.4. The Contractor delivers 85% of work products within the agreed upon
timeframes.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service dat2

Arkansas Foundation (or Medical Core. inc. ExKiOit B Contractor Initials
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New'HampshIre Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT 8

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
, Departnnent in a format specified by the Department.

S. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Cpurt Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. the Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court'Orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
Stale has the right to modify Service prioritiesand expenditure requirements
under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. ^

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detalfed description of the communication access arid language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or
who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. Alt documenls, notices, press releases, research reports and. other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services

1  of the Contract, shall include the; following statement, "The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in parl by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as.vvere available or required, e.g.. the United States Department
of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
.approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.,

5:3.3. The Department shall retain copyright pwnership for "any .and all original
materials produced, including, but riot lirriited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3:3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

is.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under' th
contract vyilhput prior written apprpyal frorn the Deparlrrient.

Afkarisfli Fei^dotion'ro'r Medical Care. inc. Enhibii D Contraciof Inltiala
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOb) Services System EXHIBIT B

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs.and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance wlih accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs .and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to Include.

■ without limitation, alt ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials. Inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or requified by the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Coniract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units pro'^ded for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitalioh hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such :obligations as. by .the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shail terrtiinate. provided however, that If, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Pepartmerit shall disallow any expenses clairned by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the fight, at Its
discretion, to deduci the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

Artiansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. ExWbHB Coriiraclw Imliali—^
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New Hampshire.Department of Health'and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ApD) Services System EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 16..5% Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant
(SAPTBG). as awarded on 10/1/2019. by the Department of Health'and
Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment.
CFDA 93.959, FAIN TIO03O41.

1.2. 75% Other Funds (Governor's Commission .on Atchohol and Other
Drugs).

1.3. 8.5% General Funds.

2. For the purposes of this. Agreement the Department has Identified the
Contractor,as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fuinilmenl of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY 2021 and Exhibit
C-2 Budgets SFY 2022.

4. The Gontfaclor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, unless otherwise specified,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
In the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated
iand relurried to the Department in.order to Initiate payment. Invoices shallibe,
net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment o.f this
agreement.

4.1. Backup do'curh'entation shall Include, bulls not limited to:

4.1.'1. . General Ledger showirig. revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheels and/or timecards signed by both employee, and
supervisor that support.the hours employees worked for wages:
reported under jhis contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federaf awards
for salaries and wages must be based on .records .that
accurately retflect the work performed.

4.T3. Per 2 CFR 200.430,(iii) Labor records must reasonably reflect'the
total activity for which each employee is compensated, .showing
percentages for lirne spent.on activities.under this contract and
all other activities (totaling no more than ldd®/o).

Aryan»aifound8tioh (or Medical Care, Inc. EUVUiC CorunKtor.iniilcis
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New Hampshire Department of. Health.and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(ApD) Services System EXHIBIT C

4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as
needed:

4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.2. Cost center reports, subrnltied only as requested by the
Department.

4.2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an eiectronic signature and
emailed to rnvoicesfofcontracts@dhhs.nh.QQv. or invoices may be mailed to:

Contract Manager for RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street. Main BWg.. 3'*" Floor North
Concord. NH 03301

6. the State.shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of.receipl
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds'are available, subject to Paragraph 4 oMhe General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract.completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in" Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The"Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreerheht may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-corhpliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit 8, Scope of Services.

10. 'Notvyilhstanding anything to the'Contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding Urideir this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the'eveht
of non-compliahce with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or ̂products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the lerrris and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
jirnlled to adjusting artiounts within the price limitation a.nd adjusting
.encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, witho'ul
obtaining -approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if rieeded and
justified.^

FoufxJaiioh for Medical Care. inc. EiWbi c Coni(«cior «niiiii»_a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AODj Services System EXHIBIT C

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the.Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1.. Condition A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently compleieo fiscal year.

12.1:2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Comniission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shal.l submit an annual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the; Contractor's fiscal
year; conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost-
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Corfdilion 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual finartcial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in anyway in lirriitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Cqnlraclor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit'exceptions
and shall return to the Departnient all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception..

ArXonsas Foundation for ModicaiCoro. Inc. Cant/acior if^iiafi RH
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Exhibit C.1

Budget snr 2021

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder Nemt; Arkansas FoundiUon ior Medical Care. Inc.

Budget Request for: Progam Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Services System
Budget Period: SPY 2021

LIne.jtem r

V I'Tdtal R.rl&grarn.Cqsl;

^Direct Indirect 'Total

Cbntrsctor'ShareMatciT

•„Blry.fc( .l^lrecl.".^.7pjal

'^F^ijnb.ft.'By;PHrtS-.contnrct share.

fijrid''. 'Indirect^.. '.Td^t^*?

1. Total Satary/Wages

2. Empfoyce Benefits

3. CortsuRants

I. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Malnienance

Purchase/Oepredaiion

5. Supplies:

Office

6. Travel

176.783

64.175

S43

5.703

50.764

24.183

156

1.636

227,547

106.356

690

7.341

176.763

64.175

543

5.703

S 50.764

S 24.163

156

S. 1.638

$ 227.547

5 106.356

699

7.341

7. Occupancy 10.396 2.987 13.363 10.396 S 2.987 S  13.363

6. Current Expenses

Telephene 4.526 1.301 5.629

Postage 2.836 815 3.653

Subscriplions

■Audh end Legal

4.526 S 1.301 S  5.829
2.636 ets S  3.653

Insurance

Board Expenses
9. Software 13,598 3.M7 17.505

10. Mafketing/Commurucarons 10.321 2.985 13.286

13.598 5 3.907 S  17.505

10.321 S 2,965 S  13.266

11. Slati Education and Training
12. Subcont/acli/AgrocmenIs
13. Other (specific details manjator;

TOTAL 308,665 86,796 397,601 308,665 S 66.736 5 397.601

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Arkansas Foundation for Medkal Care. Inc.
RPP-2021-80AS OI-PROGR-01

ExliibltC-l

Patei of I

26.73*

Contractor Initials

Date OWrw^o



OoeoSiBn Env«(op« tO; 197Cl9B»-2BBO-4E35-96OF-W0F3O0lB06F

Exhibit C-2

Budget SPY 2022

1. Total SaafyWages

2. Employee Benefitx

3. ConsuDanls

4. Equipfnent:

" Now.Hairipshir® Dopartrnent of Health and Human Services
Bidder Merhe: Artansas Founditloo for Medical Cera, inc.

Budget Request lor: Progem Eveioallon and Data Services lor the Atcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Services System
Budget Period: SPY 2022'

'  T.btii.P/pflram.'G'dst'."... .J:
.Direct. T' '•^Inaift'ct^7?. 'iTpta)';.'T

181.IBB

86,282

t 52.0SS

S 24.789

$  233.243

S  111.071

. fcontfjctpr/Share^. Mate,

Direct • tntUree

S-

S-

olai

-• Eur^'ded.by Oft HSVcqntract jhan^^
•^pire^XTt'. incllty.c.t. iTogj:

233181.188

86.282

52.055

S  24.789

.243

S  111.071

Office 161 723

6. Travel 2.750 790 3.540

7. Occupancy 10.758 5  3.091 13.849

8. Current Expenses
S-

Teiephone 4,685 S  1.346 6.031

Postage.. 2.937 844 3.781

Subscflpiions

AuOii Br<d Legal

2.750 790

10,758 3.091

4.685 1.346

2.937 844

723

3.540

13.849

S  6.031

5  3.761

9. Software 14.071 5  4.043 18.114

10. MarketinQ/Commufticatioi 10.679 $  3.068 13.747

11. Staff Education and Train

12. Subconiracts/Agreemenli

13. Ott*or (speciPic details ma

TOTAL 313.912

$•

% 90,187 404.099

Indirect As A Percent ol Direct 28.73%

4.043

10.679 3.068

313,912 90,187

18.114

13.747

404,099

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc.
RFP.2021-90AS-01-PROGR-01

ExhltlK C-2

Page 1 pl.l

Conttaaor initials RH
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New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 6

CERTIFICATtON REGARDING ORUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Vt/orkplaco Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further ̂ rees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certiricalicn;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INOIVIOUALS .

US DEPARTfylENT OF HEALTH AND HUfMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certiTicalion is required by Ihe regulaliorts jn>plemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorKptaco Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were arnended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), arid require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section S0l7.630(c) ol the
regulation provides that a grantee (end by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Departrrieni in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is d
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the granl. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grartts. or governmenl wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Sl/eet,
Concord. NH033()1-6505

1. The grantee certifies thai it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
t.l. Publishing a statement notifying employees that Ihe unlawful manufacture, distributior),

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in Ihe grantee's
workplace ar^ specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such,
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing on ongoing dmg-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of meinieining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabtlilalion, end employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties lhat may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making It e requirement lhat each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the stalemeni; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a chminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such '
conviction;

1.5. Notif^ng the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receivir>g notice ur>der
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grer
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EjMbit D - CertiTicAUon regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials.
Workplace ReguifemefUa

cuot«»i«o».> PageiofJ paie
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

has designated a central point (or the receipt o( such notices. Notice shall include the
(dentificBtion number(s) of each affecled grant;

1.6. Tbkir>g one of.ihe following ecllonis. within 30 calendar (toys of receiving notice under .
subparegraph 1.4.2, v/ilh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termlnaton. consistent with the requirements of lha Rchabililalion Act of 1973. as
amended; or -

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to parVdpale satisfactorily In a drug etwsc essi8tar>cc,of
rohabllitatloo program approved tor'such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heslth.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. ftrteking a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
IfhplemeritoUon of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3, 1.4, 1.5. end 1:6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the speciHc grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Arkansas FoundationTor Medical Care. Inc.

1020 Wen 4ih Sircei. Litilc Rock, AR 72201

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Name: Roy HaVliy
Title: President and CEO

EkNDi'I 0 -Certiflcstloh regarding Drug Fre« Vendor Ir^liBls
WoflidBCcReqol/ements

cuort^yuons Page2ol2 Paie 0>A)V2O2O
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New Hampehiro Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGAROING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply swilh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Governmeni wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Contractor's represenlallve, as identified In Sections 1.11
end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he following Certilicelion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF agriculture • CONTRACTORS

Programs (IrKflcale appllcable program covered):
•TemporaryAssislance lo Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, lo the best of his or her knowledge arvj belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Inf1uer>ce an officer or employee of any agerKy, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of o (Wember of Congress In
connection with the awarding of eny Federal contracl. conlinuation, renewal, emcndmenl, or
modification of any Federal contracl. grar^t, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spedfic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lo any person for
influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,

-  an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speoTie mention sub-grantee or suty
conl/actor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form lo
Repon Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shad require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracis. sub-grants, ar>d contracts ur\der grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify, end disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material rcpresentalion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prereouisile for making or enterir>9 Into this
transaction imposed by Section 13S2. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be sul^ect to a civil penally of not lass than SiO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name; Arkansas Foimdoiion for Medical Care. Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale . Name: Ray Honf
Title: President and CEO

Etfdblt E • Ctdlflcaitoo Rogardlrvs Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply wilh the provisions of
Execiitive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibilily Matters, and further agrees lo have the Contractor's
representative, as IdenUfied In Sections V11 end 1.12 oMhe General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION '

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing die
certification sei out below,

2. The inability of a person to provide the certiftcallon required below will nol neccssarity result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction, if r^ecessary, Ihe prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation wU be
considered In connection wilh the NH Department of Health and Hurnan Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partidpalion In
this transaction. .

\

3. ■ The certification In this clause is a matcrialTcprescntaiion of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined lo enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant know^rrgly rendered an erroneous certificalion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may icrminate this transaction for cause or defaull.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immcdiale written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submltled If at any lime the prospeciive primary partidpani learms
thai its certification was errorreous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." 'participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should Ihe
proposed covered iransaclion be entered into. 11 shall nol knovringly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, susper^ded. declared Ineligible, or volunlarlly excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, ur^less aulhorixed by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it win include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibilily and Voiuntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
l/onsactions and in all solicitations for lower lier covered transactions.

6, A particrpanl In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower lier covered transaction that ii is nol debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that Ihe certification is erroneous. A particlpanl may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required lo, check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of reco,
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and —

ExNtjii F - Certificslion RcflOfdlng Drtarmcnj. Suspension Vo^dpr initials

Cuoa^itons PaflCioii
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information oi a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a pn>dent
person In the ordinary course of business dealii^s.

10. Except for transacdons authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knpwngty enters into a lower tier covered transaction wth a person who is
suspended, deb^edi.ineilglbte, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaclior), in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauii.

PRIMARY COVEREO.TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary,participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl; declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have nol within,a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminaroffense in
connection with obtaining, eltempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transactioni violation of Federal or Stale aritltrust
statutes or commis8ior> of cmbenlemenl. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, maklrig false statements, or receiving stolen'property;

11.3. are not presently Indicled for otherwise criminally or dviliy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Stale or.local) with commission.of any of the offenses enumerated in par8graph,(l)(b)
of (his certification: and '

.. 11.4. hove nol within a Ihree-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or.local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the, prospective primary participani is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certifiiuitiqn. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED transactions
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the. prospective lower tier participant, as

defined io 'AS CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Ks knowledge end belief that U:and its principals:
13.1. are noi presenily debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligibte, or

ybtuntarily exduded from' participation in this transaction by any fe'deral department or agency.
13.2, where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective'partidpanl shalt attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participani further agrees by.sobrhKting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entilled •Certification Regarding Debarmerit. Suspension, inetigWIity, ar^
Voluntary^ Exclusion - Low«r Tier Covered Transaclions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactiorts and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

08/03/2020

Title: PresidchTon
Date Name: Ray wahicy

' ̂  dCEi

ExKBirF - Ceni^itonRegsnJlng Oottarmnx. Suspension vcfXJor WUetj
And Other RcsponjItXlityMs'iien
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CgRTIRCATION QF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature Of the Contractor's
representative as td.enlifled in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute.the following
certlficatibo;

Vendor wlli.compiy. end will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscnminalion requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1068 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion.'national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency. Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights pbligetioos of the Safe Streets.Act. Redpients.of federal funding under this.
statute ere prohibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in the delivery of sen/ices or
benefits, on the basis of/ace, color, religion, netibnal origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Em^oyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20000. which prohibits recipients of (ederet financial
assistance from discriminating on'lhe basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act.of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment end the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

.• the Americans vMth Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131'34), which prohibits
discrimination arid ensures equal opportunity for persons vyith disabilities in employment, Siate and local
government services, public eccommodations. commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661. 1683,1668-86). wfilch prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscnrninalipri Act Of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which'prohibits dlscrirhinati6r> on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does riot include
employment discrimirialion;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Oepartmenl of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt..42
(U.S. Depahmenl of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Oppbrlunlty: Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
■criteria for partnerships %v)lh faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

•• 28 C.F:R.,pl. 38 (U.S. Departrheht of Justice Regulations - Equal.Trealment for Faith-Based
Organizations); end Wliisilebtower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The f>fationdi Defense Authorization
•Act (NOAA) for FIscel Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, wh'ich protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acUvities in connection with federal grants and contracts..

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon wtiich reliance is placed when the
•agency awards the^granl. False certification or violation' of the certification shall be'grpurids for
suspension ofpayments. suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
"dcbarment.

exhwic ,
Vendor Ihiiialt. r'"
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
dlecnmlnation aftCK a dua process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nationel origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the reopient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the eppticable cdniraciing agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified In Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature ot the Contractor'B
representative es iOentifiod in Sect'ons 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiiicatlon:

1. By 8lgnlf>g"and submitting this propose' (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Vendor Name:Arkanxa.^ Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Name; Rs)
Title; President nnd CEO

HanM
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PuWic Lew 103-227. Part C • Environmenlal Tpbacco. Smoke, also knovm as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking.nct be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by.eh entity and used routinely or regularly (or the provision of heaith, day care, educalion.
or library services to children under the ege of 16, if the services are furled by Federal programs either
directly or tftrpugh Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of (aciHties used for Inpatieni dnjg or stcohol treatment. Failure
to comply vrlih the provisions of the law may result in the ImpPsiiion of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 por'day and/or the imposition ol on odminlstrotive compliance order ort (he responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of.th'e Contractor's
representative as identified in Action l.ii and t.f2 of the General Provisions, to execute (he foliowir>g
certification;

1.. By signing arid submitting this conl/ecl, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to. comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Chiidren Act of '1994.

Vendor NameiArkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

08/03/2020

Oate Name; Ray Hanlcy
Title: President and CEO

Exhibit H > CeniriCDllon Regarding Vendor initials,
Environmintal Totiacco Srr^oXe

Cur>«Srno7«J PaQOloTV Oaia :08/03r2010
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HEALTH insurance PORTABILITY
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor identined in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to,
comply wUh the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with ihe.Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean lhe Vendor end subcontractors and agents of the Vendorlhat receive, ̂
use or have access io protected health inlprmallon under this Agreement 'and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the Slate of New Hampshire. Department "of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have Ihe same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code offederaj Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meanirig given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. «

d. 'pe'^lpnated Rccofd Set" shall have the same,meaning as the term "designated record set"
ln45CFRSection.164.50l.

e. 'Oala AaQreoalion' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Sectipri 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
in'45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Cnnical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery.and Reinvestment Act of.
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and. Accountability Act of 1,996. Public Law
104-191 and Ihe .Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
lnformalion..45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Indivkfuar shall have the siame rrieaning as the lerrn 'individual' in AS CFR Section '16.0.-103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSeclion 164.501(g).

]. 'Pfivacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by.the United States
bepartrrient of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected heall
Information' ln-45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or reoeiv^ •
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/201* guvsiil Vendor Initial*,
HetllD InsiKinco PonabCitr Act
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I. "ReQuired bv Law" shall have Ihe same meaning as the lerm "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Sgcfclarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. -Rftcuritv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Pfolectlon of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. SubpaA C, and arrtendmenls thereto.

Q  'Unsecured Protected Heatth triformatlon' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Iristituie.

p' niherDefiniiiQna • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, end the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buiilness Assbctate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.- Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected.Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreemeril. Further, Business Associate, including but not Hrniled lo a"
its "directors, officers, ernplpyees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy arid Security Rule,

b. Business Associate may use Of disclose PHI;
I. " For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terrhs set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III.. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permiiled under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
:ihird party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such •disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidenlially end
used or further, disclosed only as required by law or for (he purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In. .accordance :wlth the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules, of any breaches ;of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary lb.
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclosc any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first, notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dlsclosu^
io seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi

3/2014 V#n<)Of,lniu>li:Rlt
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Eritity rtotifies the Busiriess Asspdale that Covered Entily has agreed to
be bourxJ by additlpnal restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy arxl Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional'restrictions.and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall pbide by any addHiona) security safeguards.

(3) nhiigntions and Activities of Business AaaQCiatQ-

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes asvare of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-idenlification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or lo whom.the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether ihe protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 5 business
.day:or the breach and immediately report the findings of. the risk assessment in
writing to the Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with sit sections of the Privacy. Security.and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on.behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HlPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate.shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to'Odhere to the s'arrie
restrictions and conditions on ihe use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, includirig
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under $eclion.3 (I). The Coveried Entih^
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of ihe Contractor's business 'essr
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be recelvihf"

y20i4 Conirtctofinlilatt
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. -. pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a writlen request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and di^osure
Of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wlhtn ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Assodaie shall provide access to PHI in a Deslgnaled Record Set lo the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet Ihe
requiremenis under 45 CFR Section 154.52i.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI. available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment lo enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 154.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enlily to respond lo a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528;

j. Within len (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for.an accounting of disclosures pf PHI, Business Associate shall make available
lo Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
lo provide an accounting of disclosures with respect lo PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibilily of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonwarding the
individual's rcquesl lo Covered Entity would cause Covered Enllty or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and Ihe Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within len (10) business days of lermination of the AgreemenI, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limil further uses and disclosures of such PHI to lho«
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^

3/201* • ExNW Vcfttfoi InWlJt
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- • - Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In its sole discreljon, requires that the
' Business Associate destroy any or all PHl. the Business Associate shall certify to'
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblioatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business, Associate of any changes or limilalion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to indiyiduais in accordance svith 45 CFP Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PMI.

b. Covered Er^tity shali promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Asspciale under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
1W.506 or 45 CFR Section t64.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions, on the use or
disdosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR t64.S2'2.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assodaie's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Tcfmlnatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms apd conditions (P-37} of this
Agreement the .Covered Entity may immedialefy lemiinate the Agreement upon,Covered
.Entity's knowledge of a breach by Budness Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immedlaleiy
.'terminate the Agreement.or provide an opportunity for Business'Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Eritity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MlBcetlandous

a. Definitions and Redulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall haye.the same 'rmeaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a: Section in the Privacy and Security Rule mean's the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
.necessaiy. lo, arnen'd the Agreement,/rom time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to cprnpfy with the changes in the requirerrierils of HIPAA, the f^rivacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It.has nb.'ownershjp rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity..

d. Inlerpretalion. The parties agree.that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall bp
;to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and'Sccurily Rule..

MOU EKhlWll Vendoi Initials

'Keillh Injurtnce Portafity Act
GirtineitMsodsle Agroemcnt
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the epplication thereof to eny
per8on(8) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such Invaildity shell not affect other terms or
cor^dilipne which ten be Qiven effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabie.

Survival. Pro.vtslons in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
derense.and.indemn'iTicdlion provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37), shatl survive tho termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOP, the patlies hereto have duly executed (his Exhibit I.

Oepartmenl of HeaKh and Human Services

The Slate

'^nature'ofCuthorized Representative
^

Narna^UAulhorized RepreseritaCive

Title of Authoriaed Representative

Arksnsss FoundtiionorMedica! Care. Inc.

of the Ven

Date

Signafure w Authorized.f^resentative

Rav Hanky
Name of Authorized Representative

President and CEO
Title of Authorized.Representative

08/05/2020
Date

V201« ExMsni
H(|ltf) Inturanc* PgmeUty Ad
.eusinatt AiiecUiA Ag>«emenl

Pic* 6 dI 0

V»ntfo» MUlb KH

o,tt w>inm



OocuSign Envelope ID: i97CigB1-2BBD<4E3&-960F.&^F3001B06F

New Hampshire Ocpartmeht ol Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIPICATION REQARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDtWQ ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
^rifPFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardoes of indivkJuai
Federal grants equal lo or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or alter October 1. 20tp. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. II the
initial award is below $25,000 bul subsequent grant rhodincatlons result in a total award equal lo or over
$25,000. the award is subject to ihe FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the oward.
In accordance wllh 2 CFR Pad 17D (Reporting Subav/ard end Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health end Human Services (DHHS) musl report Ihe following informalion lor any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA rcportlrtg requirements:
1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive ofilhe purpose o( the funding action
7. Locaiiop of the enlily ,
8. Principle place of performmce
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS F)
10. Total compensalion and names of the top five executives If.'

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal governmertl. and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and '

10.2. Compensaliori Informalion Is not already available through reporting to Ihe SEC.

Prirne grant recipients musl submit FFATA required data by the end dl the month, plus 30 days. In vmich
the sward or oward amendment la made.

The Vendor identified in Section , 1.3 of the .General Provisions agrees .to comply with the provisions of
The Federal F.unding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 10^262 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and.Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's represehtalive. as Iderrtified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of,l:lealth ar^ Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accounlabilily and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name; Arkansas Foundation for fvlcdicol Care, Inc.

08/03f2020

Dale Nam(
Title: Prcsidcm and CIZO

anicyRq

HH
J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Inltlatt.

Aceovnlabaiiy And TransparerKy Ad (FFATA) Compfianca
cu<]^ii07o Page 10(2 Dale
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PORMA

As the Vendor identified In Section .1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify thai the responses to the
below listed questions ere true end accurate.

1. TheOUNS number for your entity is: 010330963 •

2. |n your business or OfQaniiallon's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, o'dhls. sub^granls. and/or cooperative agreements; end (2) i25.d00.000 or more In annual
gross revenues frorn U.S. federal coniracis. subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative bgreemenis?

NO •YES

If the answer to 02 ebove Is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to-infomialion about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of.the Securities
Exchange Act of 19M (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or seciion 6104 o1 the Internal Revenue Code ol
19867

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. slop here

If Ihe answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names erwj compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
orgsnization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuotcitmti

ExNbK J -.C^inutiOA Regarding me FeOe/et Funding
Accdufti'abifify And frifttpdrency Aa (FFaTA) CompJence

Pegb 2^2

Vendor Inlileii RH

bale 0^1/2020
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DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss or control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, ".Breach" shall have the same meanmg as the term "Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in sectior) two (2) of NlST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce..

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health .Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by .
■  the Stale of NH - created, recelv^ frorn or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • oi which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but is not limited to ,
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCl). and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. conlraclor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

I

5. "HiPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, less
or misplacement of hardcopy docurnents. and misrouting of physical or eleclronij

RtiVS.Ustupdale tOrtWJB ExhioiiK Conttftdor inUlaij,
OKHS (nrormadon

Security Requiremonis
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DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, a!) of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modificalion or destruction.

7. 'Open VNAreless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, ar^d
approved, by means-of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI.- PPI.
PHI or ccnifidential OHMS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace en indlyidual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined vrith other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to. a specific individual, -such as date and place of birth, mother's rnalde.n
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information* (or 'PHI') has the same meaning' as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Ir^formation that is
hot secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Healih Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized iridlvidual.s arid is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the iVnerican National Standards Institute.

(. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A- Business Use^ and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Conridential trifprmation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, empbyees and agents.imust not
.use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informalibn in response tOia

vs.LBSlufxtoie KVoanS EvhibnK Contiadofiniilaii R(
OHHS inTonnailon
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request for disclosure on the basis thai it Is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must riot disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSIVllSSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated: by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the iniernei

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive isuch information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If .End User is ernploying the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. Fite Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transrnit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wreless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Lesi up<3ate 10r09/i8 ExriWiK
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely lrar«mltting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. M End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which informalion will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
Ertd User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-houf auio-delelion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Conuaci. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parlies must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to delect potential security evenis that can impacl Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential informalion for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and idenlified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and'securily. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. till upd«le lOWnS K Cortrdctc WUolJ
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wt^ole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewan protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulneratxiity of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will, maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termlnatibn; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Conlractof or arty subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or; disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire'data'shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion arid media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In, writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification tojhe Oepartmehl
upon request. The written cedihcation will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable.

'  regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to desiructipn.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of. (he termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. .

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
l?y means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

fV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHMS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or nies. as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintair) proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, process.ed, managed, and/pr stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Corilractor vyill maintain policies and procedures' to protect Departrhenl
cpr^fidential information throughout the information lirecycte. where applicable, (frorh
creation, transformation, use. storage and -secure destruction) regardless of the.
media used to store the data (i.e., (ape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. LMi update irvosns EtfilbiiK ConUictprMtiaJs
DHHS informailort

Socudty Requl/eineni)
Page sol ft DeteJUmOZO.



DocuStgn Envelope ID: 197C198V2BBD-4E3&-96CF-dADF3D01B06F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepartmervi confiderMial information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems ar)d/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor v^ll provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Oepartmeni confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
.supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines • specific security
expectMions, and rTK>nitoring compliance to security'requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requlrernents.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department .to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, s^tems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wHh the Department and is .responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Depailmenl and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Deparlmenl.

.11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response end recovery from

vs. l0»1upd«lB Kvosns ExNbslK CenUodorbXUsll.
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the breach, including but not limited to: cr^il monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach,

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations, regarding the
privacy aixl security of Confidential Information, arxl must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI'and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not litTilted to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S.C. § _552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.P.R. Parts 1,60 and 164) thal.govcrn protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and. maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the corindentlallly ,of the Conlldential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The saf^uards must provide a level and
scope of security that Js not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire. Oepartment of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wvAv..nh.gov/d6it/vend6r/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurcmenHnformaiion relating to vertdors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented, breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incidenl. or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor'must restrict access to the Confidential Data Pbtained under this
Contract to only those authorized' End Users who rieed such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.-

16. The Contractor rnusl ensure that all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. aboye.
Implemented to protect Confidential information that js furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or. Inadvertent disclosure,

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops .and other electronic device^media conlainirig PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential. Information only if enciVpted and beirig
senl lo and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

RHV5.UM«pfl3iel(V08na ExMUiK ComtftctoilnUlali
OHMS Inlprmslion
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e. limit disclosure of the Conndential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract end individually
idenUfiabie data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in en area thai Is
physically and technologicatiy secure from access by unaulhorized persons
durino duty hours as v/eil as non-duty hours (e.Q-. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifters, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, .mcluding any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or virhen
stored on portable media as required In section IV alwve.

h. In .all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves Uie right to conduct onsite inspections' to monitor compliance, with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requiremerils provided in herein, HIPAA,
and plher applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

the. Contractor must notify the .Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of ariy
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contraclor must further-handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notrficalion
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to,-and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with .all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contraclof's procedures must also address how the Contraclor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. tOetermi.ne if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspect^ or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P:.37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk-level of Incidents

and deterrhine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5.Lwtupdalet(V0ii/i8 EJchlbhK ComrBCiorWUtlf
OHMS lnJo«nal(Oo

SecurtlyftoQui/cmefttj -MAwnnyft
Date 0!Ut)y2020
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5 Determine wtiether Breach notification Is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach, notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHMS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPfivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSlnformalionSecuriryOffice@dhhs.nh.90v

vs.LMiupdBic ioros/18
DHHS inlo'mBilon
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SKUliyRCQjIremcfiis 08/03/2010
Pago • of 9


